
CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF
City of Scottsbluff Council Chambers

2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, NE
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

Regular Meeting
November 18, 2013

6:00 PM

1. Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. For public information, a copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is available for 
review.

4. Notice of changes in the agenda by the city clerk (Additions may not be made to this 
agenda less than 24 hours before the beginning of the meeting unless added under Item 5 
of this agenda.)

5. Citizens with business not scheduled on the agenda (As required by state law, no matter 
may be considered under this item unless council determines that the matter requires 
emergency action.)

6. Consent Calendar:

a) Approve the minutes of the  November 4, 2013 Regular Meeting.

b) Acknowledge the claim filed by Leonard Tabor regarding damage to the 
building located at 510 Broadway and forward the claim to the city’s insurance 
carrier.

c) Council to approve the RFP for professional services relating to the Economic 
Development Study and authorize the City Clerk to advertise for proposals to be 
received by December 27, 2013 at 2:00 p.m.

d) Council to set a Public Hearing for December 2, 2013 at 6:05 p.m. regarding the 
Preliminary Plat for Blocks 1, through 7, Reganis Subdivision a replat of Lots 1 
&  2, Block 1, Idlewylde Addition and part of Block 1A, Scotts Bluff College 
Tract, and unplatted lands.

e) Council to set a Public Hearing for December 2, 2013 at 6:05 p.m. regarding the 
zone change request for the Reganis Subdivision -  .80 acres will be rezoned to 
Residential R-1 and 3.22 acres will be rezoned to C-2 Neighborhood and Retail 
Commercial. 

f) Council to consider closing City offices at 12:00 noon  on December 24, 2013, 
Christmas Eve.

7. Claims:

a) Regular Claims

8. Public Hearings:

a) Council to conduct a public hearing as advertised for this date at 6:05 p.m., 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 1 / 178



2

regarding the acquisition of property located at 1308 East 17th Street, 
Scottsbluff for the purpose of stormwater management.

9. Petitions, Communications, Public Input:

a) Council to recognize the receipt of the Scott Wilber Award for Outstanding 
Facility Operations for the Wastewater Treatment Plant.

10. Reports from Staff, Boards & Commissions:

a) Council to approve the Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification for the 
Police Department and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement.

b) Council to authorize the Mayor to sign the Environmental Review 
Determination form for the Cirrus House projects.

c) Council to consider the Consolidated Communications Center Inter-Local 
Agreement Amendment and authorize the Mayor to execute the amendment.

d) Council discussion and instructions to staff regarding the request from 
Terrytown to purchase water from the City of Scottsbluff.

e) Council to confirm the list of City Council candidates submitted by the deadline 
to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of Council Member Deibert and set 
the interview schedule.

11. Resolution & Ordinances:

a) Council to consider approval of the contract with the Scottsbluff Police 
Officer’s Association and authorize the Mayor to execute the contract.

b) Council to consider the amended 2013-2014 pay resolution.

c) Council to consider an Ordinance dealing with a change in fees for proposed 
budgeted fees charged for water, wastewater, and environmental services 
(second reading).

d) Council to approve the Region 22 Emergency Management Debris Management 
Program Plan and approve the Resolution.

12. Executive Session

a) (Council reserves the right to enter into closed session if deemed necessary if 
the item is on the agenda.)

13. Public Comments:   The purpose of this agenda item is to allow for public comment of 
items for potential discussion at a future Council Meeting.  Comments brought to the 
Council are for information only.  The Council will not take any action on the item 
except for referring it to staff to address or placement on a future Council Agenda.  This 
comment period will be limited to three (3) minutes per person

14. Council reports (informational only):
15. Scottsbluff Youth Council Representative report (informational only):
16. Adjournment.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 2 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Consent1

Approve the minutes of the  November 4, 2013 Regular Meeting.

Staff Contact: Cindy Dickinson

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 3 / 178



1 

 

         Regular Meeting 

         November 4, 2013 

 

 The Scottsbluff City Council met in a regular meeting on Monday, November 4, 2013 at 6:00 

p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff.  A notice of the meeting had 

been published on November 1, 2013, in the Star Herald, a newspaper published and of general 

circulation in the city. The notice stated the date, hour and place of the meeting, that the meeting would be 

open to the public. That anyone with a disability desiring reasonable accommodation to attend the council 

meeting should contact the city clerk’s office, and that an agenda of the meeting kept continuously current 

was available for public inspection at the office of the city clerk in City Hall; provided, the city council 

could modify the agenda at the meeting if it determined that an emergency so required.  A similar notice, 

together with a copy of the agenda, also had been delivered to each council member, made available to 

radio stations KNEB, KMOR, KOAQ, and television stations KSTF and KDUH, and the Star Herald.  

The notice was also available on the City’s website on November 1, 2013.  An agenda kept continuously 

current was available for public inspection at the office of the city clerk at all times from publication of 

the notice to the time of the meeting.   

 Mayor Randy Meininger presided and City Clerk Dickinson recorded the proceedings. The 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  Mayor Meininger welcomed everyone in attendance and encouraged 

all citizens to participate in the council meeting asking those wishing to speak to come to the microphone 

and state their name and address for the record. Mayor Meininger informed those in attendance that a 

copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is posted in the back of the room on the west wall for the 

public’s review. The following Council Members were present: Raymond Gonzales, Mark McCarthy, 

Randy Meininger, Mike Deibert, and Scott Shaver. Absent: None.   

 Mayor Meininger asked if there were any changes to the agenda. There were none.   Mayor 

Meininger asked if any citizens with business not scheduled on the agenda wished to include an item 

providing the City Council determines the item requires emergency action. There were none. 

  

 Moved by Council Member Gonzales, seconded by Council Member Deibert, that:  

a) “The minutes of the  October 21,  2013 Regular Meeting be approved,” 

b) “A public hearing be set for November 18, 2013, 6:05 p.m., regarding the acquisition of 

property located at 1308 E. 17
th
 Street, Scottsbluff,” 

c) “The City Manager’s appointment of Megan Heyward to the Parks, Recreation and Cemetery 

Board be approved,” 

d) “The City Manager’s appointment of David Gompert to the Planning Commission be 

approved,”  “YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, McCarthy and Meininger,  “NAYS” None. 

Absent: None. 

 Moved by Council Member Gonzales, seconded by Council Member Deibert, “that the following 

claims be and hereby are approved and should be paid as provided by law out of the respective funds 

designated in the list of claims dated November 4, 2013, as on file with the City Clerk and submitted to 

the City Council,”  “YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, McCarthy and Meininger,  “NAYS” None. 

Absent: None. 

CLAIMS 

ABBIGAIL YELLMAN,REIMB,27.13; ACTION COMMUNICATION INC.,PAGER RENT,19.53; AIR 

CYCLE,DISPOSAL FEE,996.80; AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT,LLC,BOND PAYMENT,17573.21; 

ANITA'S GREENSCAPING,RAIN GDN MAINT/IMPROVE,390.98; BAKER & TAYLOR 

CO,BOOKS,330.53; BATTERY ZONE,DEPT SUPP,63.95; BLUFFS SANITARY SUPPLY INC.,DEPT 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 4 / 178



2 

 

SUPPLIES,161.87; BROWN NELSON ELECTRIC,EFFLUENT BLDG MAINT,90.86; CAPITAL 

BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC.,EQUIP MAINT,76.07; CARR TRUMBULL LBR INC.,BUILD. 

MAIN.,149.34; CEMENTER'S INC,CEMENT,232.74; CENTURY LUMBER CENTER,DEPT 

SUPPLIES,54.59; CIRRUS HOUSE APT LLP,TREE REBATE,99.98; CITY OF GERING,HIDTA 

REIMB,2721.13; COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS CORP, I,CONVERSION INVOICE,48.70; 

COMFORT INN-GRAND ISLAND,TRAINING,73.91; CONSOLIDATED 

MANAGEMENT,TRAINING,209.25; CONTRACTORS MATERIALS INC.,EQUIP MAINT,227.22; 

CREDIT MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC.,CONVERSION INVOICE,203.42; CULLIGAN 

INC.,BLDG MAINT,16.20; D&D COMMUNICATIONS,EQUIP MAINT,461.05; DALE'S TIRE & 

RETREADING, INC.,VEHICLE MTNC,3885.63; ELLIOTT EQUIPMENT COMPANY 

INC.,VEHICLE MTNC,401.72; ENERGY LABORATORIES, INC,SAMPLES,108.00; ENVIRO SERV 

INC,SAMPLES,135.00; FASTENAL CO.,SUPP,15.48; FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP.,SHIPPING 

FEES,98.84; FLOYD'S SALES & SERV INC.,VEHICLE MTNC,95.64; FRED PRYOR 

SEMINARS,SCHOOLING,199.00; FREMONT MOTOR SCOTTSBLUFF,LLC,VEHICLE 

MTNC,46.05; GENERAL TRAFFIC CONTROLS, INC,SUPP,572.09; GOLD WATCH 

LLC,DISPOSAL FEES,3000.00; HARRIS COMPUTER SYSTEMS,TECH SPPRT,4743.40; 

HAWKINS, INC.,CHLORINE,1308.10; HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD,METER SUP,51,926.05; 

HEILBRUN FARM IND SUPP.INC.,EQUIP MAINT,297.21; HOME DEPOT CREDIT 

SERVICES,BLDG MAINT,99.01; HULLINGER GLASS & LOCKS INC.,DEPT SUP,7.75; 

HYDROTEX,FUEL SUPP,732.35; ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457,CONVERSION 

INVOICE,1106.94; IDEAL LINEN SUP INC.,DEPT SUP,199.99; INDEPENDENT PLUMBING & 

HEATING, INC,BUILD. MAIN,80.00; INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE,FED,FICA,MED 

W/H,58639.59; JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL,UNIFORMS,3752.34; KIMBALL 

MIDWEST,SUPP,1058.61; KRIZ-DAVIS COMPANY INC.,ELECT. SUPP,262.38; LEAGUE ASSOC 

OF RISK MANAGEMENT,INS.RENEWAL,542,866.00; LOGAN CONTRACTORS SUPPLY 

INC,PARTS,61.65; LYNN GARTON,ADV TRAVEL,89.00; M.C. SCHAFF & ASSOC, INC,SB 

DRAIN REDESIGN,1767.50; MAILFINANCE INC,RENT MACHINE,345.00; MATHESON TRI-GAS 

INC,SUPP,181.10; MATTHEW M HUTT, PH-D,CONTRACTUAL SVC,450.00; MB COMPANIES, 

INC,PARTS,399.21; MENARDS,BLDG MAINT,297.93; MID-CONTINENT SAFETY,EQUIP 

REPAIR,23.19; MIDWEST MAILING SYSTEMS INC,DEPT SUPPL,170.00; MONEY WISE OFFICE 

SUPPLIES,DEPT SUPPLIES,323.00; NAT'L REC & PARK ASSOC.,MEMBERSHIPS,390.00; NE 

CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER,CHILD SUPPORT,2217.16; NE DEPT OF 

REVENUE,STATE PYRL W/H,17740.11; NE LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING 

CENTER,TRAINING,10.00; NE LIFE MAGAZINE,SUBSCRIPTIONS,24.00; NEBRASKA 

MACHINERY COMPANY,EQUIP MAINT,4434.20; NEBRASKA MUNICIPAL CLERKS' 

ASSOC.,ANN DUES,35.00; NEBRASKA SALT AND GRAIN,DE-ICER,472.50; NEBRASKA 

STATEWIDE ARBORETUM,RAIN GARDEN PLANTS,192.00; NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS, 

INC. OF SCB,GROUNDS MAINT,68.78; NPPD,ELECTRIC,63,950.57; OREGON TRAIL PLBG & 

HTG INC,BLDG MAINT,218.00; PANHANDLE AREA DEVELOP DIST.,MEMBERSHIP,11,656.60; 

PANHANDLE RC&D,DUES,300.00; PLATTE VALLEY BANK,HSA EE & ER,11,975.96; 

POSTMASTER,POSTAGE,481.93; PRINT BROKER,DEPT SUPP,1559.82; PRINT EXPRESS,500.00 - 

EPM PERMITS,203.90; QUILL CORP,SUPPLIES,257.68; RCI,HEALTH PREM,57,645.43; RED 

BARN SHOP LLC,EQUIP MAINT,135.00; REGIONAL WEST MEDICAL CENTER,DEPT 

SUP,246.20; REGISTER OF DEEDS,LEGAL FEES,52.00; RESPOND FIRST AID SYSTEMS,DEPT 

SUPPLIES,68.99; SMEC,EMPLOYEE DEDUCTIONS,261.50; SANDBERG IMPLEMENT, 

INC,EQUIP MAINT,102.87; SCB FIREFIGHTERS UNION LOCAL 1454,UNION DUES,195.00; SCB 

POLICE OFFICERS ASS'N,UNION DUES,396; SCB TENT & AWNING,EQUIP REPAIR,54; 

SENSUS METERING SYSTEMS,SOFTWARE SUPPORT,1732.50; SHERIFF'S OFFICE,HIDTA OT 

REIMB,3079.50; SLAFTER OIL CO INC.,OTHER FUEL,146.90; SOURCE GAS,MONTHLY 

FUEL,1321.93; STAPLES,CONVERSION INVOICE,415.89; STATE HEALTH 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 5 / 178



3 

 

LAB,SAMPLES,950.00; STATE OF NE.,CONTRACT SVCS,945.00; STATE OF NEBR-DEPT OF 

ADMIN SVC,MONTHLY LONG DISTANCE-OCT,141.21; STATE PATROL,HIDTA OT 

REIMB,3361.76; STEVE SCHANAMAN,ADV TRAVEL,110.00; THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS 

CO,DEPT SUP,48.34; TOYOTA FINANCIAL SVCS,HIDTA CAR LEASE,383.99; TYLER 

TECHNOLOGIES, INC,CONSULT SERVICES,1625.00; U S WELDING,INC,DEPT SUPPLIES,51.78; 

UPSTART ENTERPRISES, LLC,DEPT SUPPLIES,25.98; US BANK-CPS,TRAINING,424.39; 

VERIZON WIRELESS,CELL PHONES,481.36; VIAERO WIRELESS,DIGGERS LOCATES,37.39; 

VOGEL PAINT - TED'S COOK PAINT,SUPP,16.70; WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB,DEPT 

SUPL,39.41; WELLS FARGO BANK N.A.,RETIREMENT,28,253.45; WESTERN PATHOLOGY 

CONSULTANTS, INC,CONT SVC,275.00; WINKLER ELECTRIC INC,ELECT MAINT,159.08; 

WINTER EQUIPMENT CO, INC,PARTS,2532.50. 

 Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council Member Deibert, “to remove from the table the 

manager application for Applebee’s liquor license,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, McCarthy and 

Meininger,  “NAYS” None. Absent: None. 

 Margaret Stine, with Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill and Bar, approached the Council to explain 

her role as manager of the Liquor License.  She explained that she manages the licenses for all Nebraska 

Applebee’s locations.  The policy they have adopted includes immediate termination for any employee 

who serves to a minor.  In addition, the manager on duty is also disciplined.  All personnel who serve 

alcohol receive the alcohol training upon hire and twice a year.  Mayor Meininger expressed his concern 

that usually the liquor license manager works on location and asked Ms. Stine how she would control 

alcohol sales.  She explained that she is on location at least two times each year and the area director 

makes visits every two weeks.  She explained that the proper sale of alcohol is strictly enforced and the 

company is very passionate about their responsibility and service to the community.  The alcohol is stored 

in a locked closet with access restricted to the bar manager and general manager. 

 City Attorney Olsen questioned Ms. Stine about the location of the Area Director and 

responsibilities of the Bar Manager and General Manager.   The Area Director is based in Cheyenne and 

visits our local Applebee’s every two weeks.  The Bar Manager and General Manager are responsible for 

ordering alcohol and the safekeeping of the products in a locked cabinet.  As Manager of the Liquor 

License, Ms. Stine also has contact with the employees through webinars and contact calls.  Their alcohol 

server training has been recognized nationally.  Chief Spencer interviewed Ms. Stine and has no concerns 

regarding her role as manager of the Applebee’s Liquor License. 

 Moved by Council Member Gonzales, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “ to forward a 

positive recommendation to the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission for Margaret Stine as the liquor 

license manager at Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill and Bar,  located at 2621 5
th
 Ave., Scottsbluff,” 

“YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, McCarthy and Meininger,  “NAYS” None. Absent: None. 

 Council reviewed the claim submitted by Jim Graff for reimbursement for paving his alley.  Staff 

investigated this claim and reported that Mr. Graff had an agreement with the City regarding use of this 

alley, of which he has not complied.  Staff is recommending denial of the claim.  Moved by Mayor 

Meininger, seconded by Council Member Shaver, “to deny the claim from Jim Graff in the amount of 

$850.00 for alley maintenance of the 1700 Block of Ave. E,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, 

McCarthy and Meininger,  “NAYS” None. Absent: None. 

 City Manager Kuckkahn presented the bids on the new street sweeper for Transportation.  Both 

bids were from Nebraska Environmental, one for a demonstration sweeper and one for a new model.  The 

new unit was only $2500.00 more than the demo.  Staff is recommending approving the bid for the new 

unit, which is less than the amount budgeted.  Moved by Mayor Meininger, seconded by Council Member 

Deibert, to award the bid for a new, six wheel street sweeper for the Transportation Department to 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 6 / 178



4 

 

Nebraska Environmental in the amount of $126,306.00,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, McCarthy 

and Meininger,  “NAYS” None. Absent: None. 

 Mr. Kuckkahn presented the agreement with ETS, a credit card merchant that will offer lower credit 

card processing fees and who’s servicing works seamlessly with our new software.  This agreement will 

switch our credit card service for customer’s utility payments.  This will provide lower fees for these 

payments.  The savings will be approximately $500.00 per month.  Mr. Kuckkahn and Mayor Meininger 

complimented Finance Director Griffiths on the conversion to the new software, which is currently in 

process and will allow for the new credit card merchant.  Moved by Council Member Shaver, seconded 

by Council Member Deibert, “to approve the credit card merchant agreement with ETS and approval of 

terminal rental agreement with ETS,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, McCarthy and Meininger,  

“NAYS” None. Absent: None. 

 Mr. Kuckkahn presented the contract with Seewald Construction to complete the Diamond Bright 

work on the Westmoor Pool.  He informed the Council that Sewald is one of two companies who do this 

type of work.  Their schedule is very unpredictable and there are no guarantees that the work will be 

completed by the time the pool opens.  Moved by Council Member Deibert, seconded by Council 

Member McCarthy, “to approve the agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement with 

Seewald Construction for work to be done at the Westmoor Swimming Pool,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, 

Deibert, McCarthy and Meininger,  “NAYS” Shaver. Absent: None. 

 Council reviewed the contract with Scotts Bluff County approving the remote locations of KENO at 

Racks Wine and Spirits and the Sugar Club.  This is a three year contract which is required for the KENO 

operation.  Moved by Council Member Deibert, seconded by Council Member McCarthy, “to approve the 

Keno Remote Location Operating Agreement with Scotts Bluff County for Racks Wine and Spirits, 1402 

East 20
th
 Street and the Sugar Club, 705 East Overland and authorize the Mayor to execute the 

agreement,” “YEAS”, Gonzales, Deibert, Shaver, McCarthy and Meininger,  “NAYS” None. Absent: 

None. 

 City Manager Kuckkahn explained the changes in the Ordinance dealing with fees for proposed 

budgeted fees charged for water, wastewater, environmental services, and miscellaneous fees. Department 

heads reviewed fees as they relate to their departments and made recommendations based on comparisons 

with other communities for increases or amendments to the fees. Council Member Deibert introduced the 

Ordinance which was read by title on first reading:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF 

AMENDING SEWER USER FEES AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, INCLUDING SURCHARGE FOR 

STORMWATER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS, AMENDING AND CHANGING THE SOLID WASTE 

COLLECTION FEES AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, WATER SERVICE FEES AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, 

PARKING FEES AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, AND MISCELLANEOUS POLICE FEES FOR POLICE 

SERVICES AND PERMITS AT CHAPTER 6 ARTICLE 6, REPEALING PRIOR PROVISIONS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Mayor Meininger presented Council Member Deibert with a plaque expressing appreciation for the 

three years of service that he has served on the City Council.  Mayor Meininger highlighted the work 

Council Member Deibert has done to get the pathway project extended and assistance with the walkability 

study.  Council Member Deibert commented that he hopes he has made a difference in the community 

during his service on the City Council.  He added that Scottsbluff is a fantastic community and hopes to 

see it listed as one of the top ten cities in which to live.  Council Member Deibert will be moving to 

Lincoln for his job duties.  His resignation from the Council will be effective as of November 8, 2013. 

 Under Council Reports, Mayor Meininger explained that the process for filling Council Member 

Deibert’s vacancy will be similar to the one when Mr. Boeckner’s Council seat was vacated last month.  

A notice and press release have been published stating that letters of interest can be submitted to the City 

Clerk by November 13, 2013 at noon.  The Council will decide when to interview the candidates at the 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 7 / 178



5 

 

November 18, 2013 meeting; the election of the new council member will take place at the December 2, 

2013 meeting; and the new council member will be sworn in on December 16, 2013. 

 Moved by Council Member McCarthy, seconded by Council Member Deibert, “to adjourn the 

meeting at 6:30 p.m.,” “YEAS”, Deibert, McCarthy and Meininger,  “NAYS” Gonzales, Shaver. Absent: 

None. 

 

       _________________________________ 

                        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

                City Clerk 

 

“SEAL” 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 8 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Consent2

Acknowledge the claim filed by Leonard Tabor regarding damage 
to the building located at 510 Broadway and forward the claim to 
the city’s insurance carrier.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 9 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 10 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 11 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Consent3

Council to approve the RFP for professional services relating to the 
Economic Development Study and authorize the City Clerk to 
advertise for proposals to be received by December 27, 2013 at 2:00 
p.m.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 12 / 178



 

 
2525 Circle Drive 

Scottsbluff, NE 69361 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR 
Statements of Qualifications and Bid Proposals 

 
FOR 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RELATING TO: 

 
Economic development study including market analytics, strategic planning, site selection, 

community assessments and organization building 
in the Cities of Scottsbluff, Gering, Terrytown and Scotts Bluff County. 

 
 
 
 

Issue Date: November 18, 2013 
 

Publish Dates:  November 22, 2013; November 29, 2013 and December 6, 2013 
 

Closing Date/Time: Friday, December 27, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact 
 

Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager 
308-630-6213 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 13 / 178



 

2 

 
 

NOTICE 
 

REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS and BID PROPOSALS 
Economic Development Study  

 
The City of Scottsbluff is soliciting Statements of Qualifications and bid Proposals from 
Economic Development Consultants or other qualified providers to provide services in market 
analysis, strategic planning, site selection, community assessments and ways to enhance the 
economic development process.  The project is the evaluation of existing conditions and 
strengths with recommendations to determine “best fit” industry, location in the community and 
the potential for long term, quality employment and site selection for new projects.   All 
submittals must be received by the City Clerk, of the City of Scottsbluff, 2525 Circle Drive, 
Scottsbluff, Nebraska, 69361, prior to 2:00 p.m., Friday, December 27, 2013. Submittals must 
be in a sealed envelope plainly marked “Statement of Qualifications and Bid Proposal, 
Economic Development Study”.  Inquiries shall be addressed to Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager, 
2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, Nebraska, 69361, 308-630-6213.  A copy of the Request for 
Qualifications and Proposal document may be obtained from the City Clerk at City Hall at the 
above location noted herein. 
 
       /s/ Cindy Dickinson, City Clerk 
Publish – 11/22/13; 11/29/13; and 12/6/13 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 14 / 178



 

3 

 
 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
The intent of this request is to solicit written Statements of Qualifications and Bid 
Proposals, hereafter referred to as “Proposal”, from a qualified person, firm, or 
corporation, hereafter referred to as “Economic Development Consultant,” to provide 
design services for: 
 

1. Market analytics, strategic planning, site selection, community assessments, 
recommendations on site selection and recommended improvements to the 
economic development process. 
 
 
To be eligible for consideration, the Economic Development Consultant must be 
capable of supplying the services as noted herein, and must also meet all other 
criteria outlined in this Proposal. 

 
2. INQUIRIES AND CORRECTIONS 

All inquiries relating to this request shall be addressed to: 
 
Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager 
City of Scottsbluff 
2525 Circle Drive 
Scottsbluff, NE 69361 
(308) 630-6213 
 

If a proposing Economic Development Consultant, prior to submitting a Proposal, 
finds discrepancies in, or omissions from this request, or should require additional 
clarification of any part thereof, a written request for interpretation may be submitted.  
Any interpretation of, or change made to the document will be made by written 
addendum to each proposing Economic Development Consultant, and shall become 
part of the request for any contract awarded.  The City of Scottsbluff will not be 
responsible for the accuracy of any oral explanations.  All inquiries shall be made in 
writing and all responses will be provided in writing, with copies being sent to all 
proposing Economic Development Consultant.  To be given consideration, inquiries 
must be received at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date established for the 
opening of the Proposal.  It shall be the responsibility of each proposing Economic 
Development Consultant to verify that every addendum has been received prior to 
submitting Proposals. 

 
3. SUBMITTAL DATE, LOCATION, AND OPENING 

All Proposals must be received by the City Clerk of the City of Scottsbluff, 2525 
Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, NE 69361 prior to 2:00 p.m., Friday, December 27, 2013.  
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope plainly marked “Statement of 
Qualifications and Bid Proposal: Economic Development Study”.  These Proposals 
will be evaluated utilizing the evaluation criteria herein.  Final approval will be given 
by the Scottsbluff City Council. 

 
4. LATE AND TELEPHONIC PROPOSALS 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 15 / 178



 

4 

 
 

Late Proposals will not be accepted under any circumstances, and any Proposal so 
received shall be returned to the proposing Economic Development Consultant 
unopened.  In addition, telegraphic and/or Proposals sent by electronic devices are 
not acceptable and will be rejected upon receipt.  Proposing Economic Development 
Consultants will be expected to allow adequate time for the delivery of Proposals.  
Sole responsibility rests with the proposing Economic Development Consultant to 
see that their Proposal is receive on time. 

 
5. CONDITIONS OF PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL 

Proposing Economic Development Consultants shall comply with at least all 
conditions, requirements, and specifications contained herein, with any insufficiency 
constituting sufficient cause for rejection of the Proposal. 
 
The Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized official of the proposing Economic 
Development Consultant submitting the Proposal. 
 
No Proposal will be accepted from any Economic Development Consultant that is in 
arrears for any obligation to the Cities, county or that otherwise may be deemed 
irresponsible or unresponsive by the City of Scottsbluff. 
 
All prices quoted must be firm for a period of ninety (90) days following the opening 
of the Proposal.  A form reflecting the proposed price (refer to section 8, items E and 
F) must be put in a separate sealed envelope to be opened once a determination 
has been made on which firm is most qualified for this project.     
 
The City of Scottsbluff reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals or any part 
thereof.  The right is reserved to waive any formalities or informalities contained in 
any Proposal, and to award the Proposal to the most responsive and responsible 
proposing Economic Development Consultant as deemed in the best interest of the 
City of Scottsbluff. 
 
The City of Scottsbluff will not return Proposals or other information supplied to them 
by any proposing Economic Development Consultant. 

 
6. EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 

Proposals will be evaluated on the basis of the Evaluation Criteria noted herein.  The 
City of Scottsbluff may make a selection on the basis of the Proposals received, or 
may choose to “short list” prospective Economic Development Consultants for further 
negotiations. 
 
The Economic Development Consultant selected for the award will be chosen on the 
basis of the apparent greatest benefit to the City of Scottsbluff and participating 
entities, and not necessarily on the basis of lowest price.  The city reserves the right 
to negotiate the contract price. 
 
Proposals shall be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria: 

 
A. Responsiveness to the needs of the City of Scottsbluff, both in service cost 

and in the scope of the services offered. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 16 / 178



 

5 

 
 

B. Responsibility of the proposing Economic Development Consultant and its 
experience in dealing with municipal governments, including the City of 
Scottsbluff, on projects of similar scope and nature. 

C. The degree to which the Proposal meets or exceeds the terms of this 
Request for Proposal. 
 

D. The thoroughness with which the Economic Development Consultant has 
included all anticipated costs in the Proposal for each phase, through 
completion of the project.  This includes hourly rates for service outside the 
scope of work. 

 

E. The ability of the Economic Development Consultant to confer with the City of 
Scottsbluff and participating entities pertaining to matters included and/or not 
included in this Request for Proposal. 

 
7. SELECTION CRITERIA 

Proposals will be reviewed, evaluated, and ranked by the Consultant Selection 
Committee.  Price is not the main selection criteria and it is not to be included in the 
firm’s Proposal.  The price is to be submitted separately as stated in section 5.  The 
selection criteria including their relative importance are: 

 
1) Professional qualifications necessary for satisfactory performance. (15 points) 

 Project manager and key team members are qualified to perform the 
work categories on the project. 

 Consultant’s knowledge of standards and procedures. 

 Qualifications of the team members, special skills and endorsements. 
 

2) Specialized experience and technical competence in the type of work.  (10 
points) 

 Consultant has provided comparable projects they have been 
involved with. 

 Technical skills and specific ED success of the consultant. 
 

3) Past performance on similar projects.  (15 points) 

 Past performance evaluations and examples of completed projects. 

 References from past two years projects of a similar nature. 
 

4) The capacity to accomplish the work in the required time.  (10 points) 

 Consultant has adequate staff for this project. 

 Current workload of the consultant. 

 Projected timeline to complete the project. 
 

5) Understanding the project.  (10 points) 

 Consultant has demonstrated understanding of key elements of the 
project. 

 Consultant has provided comparable projects they have been 
involved with. 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 17 / 178



 

6 

 
 

6) Approach to the project.  (10 points) 

 Consultant has recognized and identified special circumstances on 
the project. 

 Consultant has provided logical approach to tasks and issues on the 
project. 

 
7) Quality of the interview with the preferred candidates (20 points) 

 Interview was clear and concise. 

 Questions were appropriately answered by consultant. 
 

8) Location of the project and knowledge of the area. (10 points) 

 The consultant demonstrates their process for gaining an 
understanding of the community’s strengths and potential of the 
Scottsbluff, Gering, Terrytown and Scotts Bluff County. 

 Location criteria shall not be based on a political boundary (e.g. city or 
county limits). 

 
 

8. PROPOSAL ELEMENTS AND FORMAT 
Proposals submitted shall contain all information as requested herein and any 
additional information necessary to summarize the overall benefit of the Proposal to 
the City of Scottsbluff and participating entities. 
 
Proposals shall include, but not limited to, the following: 

 
A. A cover letter shall be provided stating the name, address, and telephone 

number of the proposing Economic Development Consultant, and must bear 
the signature of the person having the authority to make the Proposal for the 
Economic Development Consultant and bind the Economic Development 
Consultant in a formal contract with the City of Scottsbluff. 

B. A response that defines the methods and means by which the proposing 
Economic Development Consultant will perform the services outlined in the 
Request for Proposal. 

C. A project timeline outlining the dates and specific tasks necessary to provide 
the requested services. 

D. A list of what portion, if any, of services will be subcontracted and who will be 
used (name, address and phone number). 

E. A list of all costs for each phase of the project, through its completion, 
including preliminary design format, public meetings, and final presentation 
and report to the committee and cities/county. 

F. A list of hourly rates that would be charged for additional service outside the 
scope of work. 

G. A list of at least three (3) references for which similar services have been 
provided.  Include contact names, addresses, and telephone numbers. 

H. Any other information deemed necessary by the proposing Economic 
Development Consultant. 

I. Please provide three (3) copies of the Proposal. 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 18 / 178



 

7 

 
 

Submittal of the Proposal shall constitute as certification that the Economic 
Development Consultant has full knowledge of the scope, nature, quality, and 
quantity of the work to be performed, and the detailed requirements and conditions 
under which the work is to be performed. 
 
 

9. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE SUCCESSFUL PROPOSING ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANT 

Professional service or creative work including consultation, investigation, evaluation, 
planning, design, etc., must be performed by an Economic Development Consultant. 
 

 
The successful proposing Economic Development Consultant shall be prohibited 
from assigning or subcontracting the whole or any part of the contract without the 
prior written consent of the City of Scottsbluff. 
 
The successful proposing Economic Development Consultant shall demonstrate 
experience with a range of successful economic development strategies and 
approaches. 
 
The successful proposing Economic Development Consultant shall not hire, 
discharge, promote, demote, or otherwise discriminate in matters if compensation, 
terms, conditions, or privileges of employment against any person otherwise qualified 
solely because of race, creed, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical or mental 
disability, color, or age. 
 
The successful proposing Economic Development Consultant and its employees will 
operate as an independent contractor and will not be considered employees of the 
City of Scottsbluff or any member agency. 
 

10. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Topics to be addressed in the RFP include the following.  This list is not intended to 
exclude any potential options or topics of concern that may arise during the 
preparation of the Proposal.  At a minimum, the Proposal shall indicate the options, 
concerns and recommendations for the proposed study.  Proposal information and 
responsibilities should help the community answer the following questions: The 
following outlines basic elements but is not intended to limit contents of the 
Economic Development Consultants proposal. 

 
1) Preliminary Field Surveys.  The Economic Development Consultant may 

utilize whatever methods or practices they consider industry standard to compile 
information related to community preference, community potential and prospect for 
long term sustainability. 
 

2) Review such available reports, plans, maps and other data relative to the 
project. 
 

3) Meet with reviewing staff, Twin City Development, LB840 Committee and 
other economic development interests for the purpose of evaluating alternatives and 
best approach to fit the proposal to the area being considered in this RFP. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 19 / 178



 

8 

 
 

 
4) Public Meetings and private one on one meetings.  Public meetings to gather 

input from the community and its leaders.  The number and such meetings should be 
part of the proposal. 

 

5) We seek to answer these question and address the following elements in the 
study: 

What and how much commercial/industrial land should be added to meet the community's 
economic objectives now and in the long term? 

             Criteria used to identify commercial/industrial land. 

What steps can local government take to add greater certainty to the land use permitting process, 
ensuring that projects conform to the plan? 

What steps need to be taken to secure desired land without stimulating speculation? 

How can the city participate in securing land without delaying the sale to purchasers? 

What capital facilities and services need to be provided to maintain existing and promote future 
economic activities and attract new businesses, entrepreneurs and manufacturing to the area? 

What transportation network improvements are necessary to promote economic activities and 
cost? 

What utility improvements will be necessary to promote and support economic activities within the 
community and cost? 

What considerations must be made to assure the right mix of housing to support economic 
objectives? 

What  are the necessary considerations for environmental quality and maintaining existing quality 
of life as the entities move to promote the areas full economic development potential? 

A study of target industry has been completed.  Based on a review of that information are 
additions or subtractions in order?  Can the target industry “list” be refined or are specific 
industries ripe for recruiting at the national level.  What steps need to be taken to recruit the short 
and long term targets? 

Does the workforce meet the needs of the target industry and what training or enhancements can 
be made to recruit additional economic activity through workforce development? 

What role do the historic resources play in economic development and how can these resources 
be managed in a manner that protects the resource, while maintaining Scottsbluff, Gering, 
Terrytown and  quality of life and economic development potential? 

What priority sites should be considered for future economic development activity and how should 
those sites be handled to promote it.  This includes partnerships to purchase the subject property, 
options to purchase and any other forms of control that may be imployed to implement 
recommended sites. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 20 / 178



 

9 

 
 

Several areas to locate commercial/industrial activity have been identified however a full 
evaluation of the potential of these sites will be required.  This includes land use relationships, 
infrastructure costs, transportation, communication and design of the site to make it ready for 
immediate development.  Companies interested in locating in the area must be convinced they 
will be able to quickly build and begin operations. 

The area has a number of unique assets which must be considered as part of this study.  A fiber 
loop, rail, highway corridors, excess sewer and water capacity.   

The area draws from a market area well beyond it’s boundaries.  Employees and employers 
locate understanding the convenience of connections between various communities.  
Development potential for major commercial/industrial  exist in these locations.  We are interested 
in a good fit and are not attempting to force users to the Scottsbluff/Gering/Terrytown  location if 
other better suited locations exist.  An evaluation of the best fits is also an important 
consideration. 

 

 
6) Ownership of Documents – Upon completion or termination of the project, all 

documents prepared by the Economic Development Consultant, including plans, 
tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications, field notes, investigations, studies and 
reports shall become the property of, and be delivered to, the City of Scottsbluff.  The 
City acknowledges that the documents are prepared only for the project.  The City of 
Scottsbluff reserves the right to share ownership of documents with participating 
entities. 

 
11. INDEMNIFICATION 

The Economic Development Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
City of Scottsbluff, and its officers and its employees, from and against all liability, 
claims, demands, and expenses, including court costs and attorney fees, on account 
of any injury, loss, or damage, which may arise out of or are in any manner 
connected with the work to be performed, if such injury, loss, or damage is caused in 
whole or in part by, or is claimed to be caused in whole or in part by, the negligent 
act or omission, error, professional error, mistake, accident, or other fault of the 
Economic Development Consultant, subcontractor of the Economic Development 
Consultant, or any officer, employee, or agent of the Economic Development 
Consultant. 

 
12. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The Economic Development Consultant Firm will secure and maintain during the 
term of the contract a policy of professional liability insurance protecting the 
Economic Development Consultant and its employees in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000.  The Economic Development Consultant shall also maintain in effect a 
policy for worker’s compensation insurance in the amount required by Nebraska 
Law.  All policies will need to be secured from an insurance company authorized to 
do business in the State of Nebraska. 
 
The Economic Development Consultant Firm will also secure and maintain an 
insurance policy or policies in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 which protects 
it and the City from damages resulting from the Economic Development Consultant’s 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 21 / 178



 

10 

 
 

conduct.  The Certificate of Insurance shall specifically name the City as an 
additional insured party. 
 
The Economic Development Consultant Firm may not start work until evidence of all 
required insurance has been submitted and approved by the City.  The Economic 
Development Consultant Firm must cease work if any of the required insurance is 
cancelled or expires. 
 
Three (3) copies of certificates of insurance shall be submitted to and approved by 
the City prior to the execution of the contract.  The certificates must contain the 
agreement of the insurance company notifying the City in writing ten (10) days prior 
to any cancellation or material alternation of the policy.  The contractor shall not 
allow any work under the contract to be performed by a subcontractor unless 
evidence of similar insurance covering the activities of the subcontractor is submitted 
to and approved by the City. 

 
13. CONTRACT NEGOTIATION  

The City of Scottsbluff reserves the right to negotiate any and all items in the formal 
contract as they may relate to the Scope of Services, etc., found in this document. 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 22 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Consent4

Council to set a Public Hearing for December 2, 2013 at 6:05 p.m. 
regarding the Preliminary Plat for Blocks 1, through 7, Reganis 
Subdivision a replat of Lots 1 &  2, Block 1, Idlewylde Addition 
and part of Block 1A, Scotts Bluff College Tract, and unplatted 
lands.

Staff Contact: Annie Urdiales

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 23 / 178



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No.  
 

For meeting of: November 18, 2013 
 

AGENDA TITLE: Public Hearing for a preliminary plat of Blocks 1, through 7, Reganis 
Subdivision a replat of Lots 1 &  2, Block 1, Idlewylde Addition and part of Block 1A, Scotts Bluff 
College Tract, and unplatted lands situated in S ½ Section 13, T22N, R55W of the 6 th P.M. in 
the City of Scottsbluff, Scotts Bluff County Nebraska. 
 
SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION: Development Services Department 
 
PRESENTATION BY: Rick Kuckkahn 
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: M. C. Schaff and Associates engineers for Tim & Virginia Reganis 
submitted a preliminary plat for the above stated property.  The property consists of 
approximately 25.27 acres.  City Staff and the City’s Consultant have reviewed the plat and the 
plats meet existing city codes of the Residential and Commercial zoning districts. 
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At a regular meeting held on November 12, 
2013 the Planning Commission approved the preliminary plat and that the Developer will comply 
with City of Scottsbluff specifications and street standards as required by city ordinance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the Preliminary Plat, with conditions as noted for the 
entire subdivision is recommended at this time. 

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution  Ordinance           Contract     Minutes x         Plan/Map x 
 
Other (specify)   

 
NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    

Larry McCaslin, M.C. Schaff & Associates, 818 South Beltline Hwy E 
 
APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       

                                 City Manager 

  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 24 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Consent5

Council to set a Public Hearing for December 2, 2013 at 6:05 p.m. 
regarding the zone change request for the Reganis Subdivision -  
.80 acres will be rezoned to Residential R-1 and 3.22 acres will be 
rezoned to C-2 Neighborhood and Retail Commercial. 

Staff Contact: Annie Urdiales

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 25 / 178



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No.  
 

For meeting of: November 18, 2013 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  Set Public Hearing for zone change request for Reganis Subdivision -  .80 
acres will be rezoned to Residential R-1 and 3.22 acres will be rezoned to C-2 Neighborhood 
and Retail Commercial these zone changes will adjust current zoning in this area. 
 
SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION: Development Services 
 
PRESENTATION BY: Rick Kuckkahn 
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: Public hearing for zone change request from property owners, Tim 
& Virginia Reganis to rezone proposed Lots & Blocks in the Reganis Subdivision 3.22 acres ± 
will be rezoned to C-2 and .80 acres will be rezoned to R-1 this adjustment of the zoning will be 
at the centerline of the proposed Wintercreek Drive extension. The north side of the street will 
be zoned residential and the south half will be zoned commercial.    These parcels are located 
north of 27th Street, east of Highway 26, west of WNCC, and south of Talisman Drive.  
Surrounding properties are zoned Residential to the north, west and east, with an area zoned C-
2 to the northwest. The City’s comprehensive development plan future land use map designates 
the area as Business Center.     
 
BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

EXHIBITS  

Resolution Ordinance    Contract     Minutes         Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)   

 
NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    

 

 
APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       

                                 City Manager 

  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 26 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Consent6

Council to consider closing City offices at 12:00 noon  on December 
24, 2013, Christmas Eve.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 27 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Claims1

Regular Claims

Staff Contact: Renae Griffiths, Finance Director

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 28 / 178



11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 1 of 27

Expense Approval Report
City of Scottsbluff, NE By Vendor Name

Post Dates 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: 3 A RENTALS LLC

Fund: 641 - WATER

133.18REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REF

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 133.18

Vendor 3 A RENTALS LLC Total: 133.18

Vendor: ACTION COMMUNICATION INC.

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

19.61CONTRACTUAL SERVICESPAGER RENT

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 19.61

Vendor ACTION COMMUNICATION INC. Total: 19.61

Vendor: AHLERS BAKING INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

62.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 62.99

Vendor AHLERS BAKING INC Total: 62.99

Vendor: ALAMAR UNIFORMS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

75.46UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 75.46

Vendor ALAMAR UNIFORMS Total: 75.46

Vendor: ALLO COMMUNICATIONS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

235.03TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

69.30TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

67.80TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

37.07TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

227.80TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

210.88TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

291.12TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

1,615.50TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

551.28TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

170.25TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

168.75TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 3,644.78

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

517.43TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 517.43

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

69.30TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 69.30

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

141.60TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 141.60

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

135.60TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 135.60

Fund: 641 - WATER

102.45TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 102.45

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 29 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 2 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

33.15TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 33.15

Fund: 721 - GIS SERVICES

34.07TELEPHONELOCAL TELEPHONE CHARGES

Fund 721 - GIS SERVICES Total: 34.07

Vendor ALLO COMMUNICATIONS Total: 4,678.38

Vendor: AMELIA FRASER

Fund: 641 - WATER

24.07REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 24.07

Vendor AMELIA FRASER Total: 24.07

Vendor: AMERI-TECH EQUIP CO

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

450.91VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 450.91

Vendor AMERI-TECH EQUIP CO Total: 450.91

Vendor: ANA J GONZALEZ

Fund: 641 - WATER

37.72REFUNDS PAYABLEUTILITY REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 37.72

Vendor ANA J GONZALEZ Total: 37.72

Vendor: ANN ENGELHAUPT

Fund: 641 - WATER

13.42UTILITY PENALTIESutil.refund

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 13.42

Vendor ANN ENGELHAUPT Total: 13.42

Vendor: ANTHONY J MURPHY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

191.32SCHOOL & CONFERENCEADV TRVL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 191.32

Vendor ANTHONY J MURPHY Total: 191.32

Vendor: ASSURITY LIFE INSURANCE CO

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

72.21LIFE INS EE PAYABLELIFE INS P/R DED

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 72.21

Vendor ASSURITY LIFE INSURANCE CO Total: 72.21

Vendor: AUTOZONE, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

12.78EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEequip. repairs

12.76EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEdept. supplies

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 25.54

Vendor AUTOZONE, INC Total: 25.54

Vendor: BARCO INC.

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

1,060.65DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESGALV. POSTS

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 1,060.65

Vendor BARCO INC. Total: 1,060.65

Vendor: BATTERY ZONE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

24.55INVESTIGATION SUPPLIESINVEST SUPPL

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 30 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 3 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

45.91INVESTIGATION SUPPLIESINVEST SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 70.46

Vendor BATTERY ZONE Total: 70.46

Vendor: BLUFFS SANITARY SUPPLY INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

49.17DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

49.18DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

141.29JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJntrl sup

34.50JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJntrl sup.

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 274.14

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

299.31DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDept Supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 299.31

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

86.65DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESOffice sup

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 86.65

Fund: 641 - WATER

86.66DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESOffice sup

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 86.66

Vendor BLUFFS SANITARY SUPPLY INC. Total: 746.76

Vendor: BRIAN E STOTT

Fund: 641 - WATER

31.27REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REF

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 31.27

Vendor BRIAN E STOTT Total: 31.27

Vendor: BRIDGET N FARRO

Fund: 641 - WATER

12.41REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 12.41

Vendor BRIDGET N FARRO Total: 12.41

Vendor: CAPITAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

52.58EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCECOPIER MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 52.58

Vendor CAPITAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC. Total: 52.58

Vendor: CARR TRUMBULL LBR INC.

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

15.39DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 15.39

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

6.79DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDPT SUP

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 6.79

Vendor CARR TRUMBULL LBR INC. Total: 22.18

Vendor: CEMENTER'S INC

Fund: 641 - WATER

69.82DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESMaint Sup

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 69.82

Vendor CEMENTER'S INC Total: 69.82

Vendor: CENTURY LUMBER CENTER

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

84.46DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 84.46

Vendor CENTURY LUMBER CENTER Total: 84.46

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 31 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 4 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: CHAMPLAIN PLANNING PRESS, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

95.00MEMBERSHIPSmembership

49.25PUBLICATIONS3 welcome guides

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 144.25

Vendor CHAMPLAIN PLANNING PRESS, INC Total: 144.25

Vendor: Cherry County Sheriff's Office

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

64.50CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 64.50

Vendor Cherry County Sheriff's Office Total: 64.50

Vendor: CHILD DEV CENTER SPRINKLER

Fund: 641 - WATER

52.60REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REF

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 52.60

Vendor CHILD DEV CENTER SPRINKLER Total: 52.60

Vendor: CITY OF GERING

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

22.15CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCON SRV

25.75CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCON SRV

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 47.90

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

38,241.91DISPOSAL FEESdisposal fees

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 38,241.91

Vendor CITY OF GERING Total: 38,289.81

Vendor: COMFORT INN-GRAND ISLAND

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

221.73SCHOOL & CONFERENCETRAINING

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 221.73

Vendor COMFORT INN-GRAND ISLAND Total: 221.73

Vendor: CONNECTING POINT INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

47.86RENT-MACHINESRENT-MACHINES

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 47.86

Vendor CONNECTING POINT INC Total: 47.86

Vendor: CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

310.75SCHOOL & CONFERENCETRAINING

291.75SCHOOL & CONFERENCETRAINING

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 602.50

Vendor CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT Total: 602.50

Vendor: CONTINUUM EMPLOYEE ASSITANCE

Fund: 812 - HEALTH INSURANCE

5,500.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICEScontr.serv

Fund 812 - HEALTH INSURANCE Total: 5,500.00

Vendor CONTINUUM EMPLOYEE ASSITANCE Total: 5,500.00

Vendor: CONTRACTORS MATERIALS INC.

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

146.02DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

4.12DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

31.85DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 181.99

Vendor CONTRACTORS MATERIALS INC. Total: 181.99

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 32 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 5 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: COUNTY COURT SCOTTS BLUFF COUNTY

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

371.00LEGAL FEESCOURT COSTS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 371.00

Vendor COUNTY COURT SCOTTS BLUFF COUNTY Total: 371.00

Vendor: CREDIT MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC.

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

203.42WAGE ATTACHMENT EE PAYWAGE ATTACH

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 203.42

Vendor CREDIT MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC. Total: 203.42

Vendor: CULLIGAN INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

8.10BUILDING MAINTENANCEBLDG MAINT

8.10BUILDING MAINTENANCEBLDG MAINT

32.40DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

62.82BUILDING MAINTENANCEBLDG MAINT

62.83BUILDING MAINTENANCEBLDG MAINT

64.80DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDept sup

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 239.05

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

55.80DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

18.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 73.80

Vendor CULLIGAN INC. Total: 312.85

Vendor: D & H ELECTRONICS INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

13.67EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 13.67

Vendor D & H ELECTRONICS INC. Total: 13.67

Vendor: DALE'S TIRE & RETREADING, INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

48.81VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MTC

12.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

26.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MTC

12.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 98.81

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

50.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCETIRE REPAIR

1,037.30VEHICLE MAINTENANCETIRES

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 1,087.30

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

103.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEquip maint

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 103.00

Vendor DALE'S TIRE & RETREADING, INC. Total: 1,289.11

Vendor: DANKO EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT CO

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

391.95DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 391.95

Vendor DANKO EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT CO Total: 391.95

Vendor: DAVID W GOMPERT

Fund: 641 - WATER

8.91REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REF

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 8.91

Vendor DAVID W GOMPERT Total: 8.91

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 33 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 6 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: DITCH-WITCH INC

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

51.96EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 51.96

Vendor DITCH-WITCH INC Total: 51.96

Vendor: DUHAMEL BROADCASTING ENT.

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

325.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESPublic Ed Ads

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 325.00

Vendor DUHAMEL BROADCASTING ENT. Total: 325.00

Vendor: ELLIOTT EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC.

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

2,104.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

27,884.48DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

453.03DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 30,441.51

Vendor ELLIOTT EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC. Total: 30,441.51

Vendor: ENVIRO SERV INC

Fund: 641 - WATER

45.00SAMPLESSamples

60.00SAMPLESSamples

15.00SAMPLESSamples

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 120.00

Vendor ENVIRO SERV INC Total: 120.00

Vendor: FASTENAL CO.

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

1.05DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 1.05

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

12.12VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 12.12

Vendor FASTENAL CO. Total: 13.17

Vendor: FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP.

Fund: 641 - WATER

37.25POSTAGEShipping

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 37.25

Vendor FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP. Total: 37.25

Vendor: FELSBURG HOLT & ULLEVIG, INC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

640.51STREET PROJECTSENG. SERVICE

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 640.51

Vendor FELSBURG HOLT & ULLEVIG, INC Total: 640.51

Vendor: FLOYD'S SALES & SERV INC.

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

2,915.22VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

28.29VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle mtnc

45.01VEHICLE MAINTENANCEvehicle parts

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 2,988.52

Vendor FLOYD'S SALES & SERV INC. Total: 2,988.52

Vendor: FRANK IMPLEMENT INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

654.91EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

318.45EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

1,500.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCON SRV

14.51EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 34 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 7 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

225.95EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

17.86EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

36.72EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 2,768.40

Vendor FRANK IMPLEMENT INC. Total: 2,768.40

Vendor: GENERAL TRAFFIC CONTROLS, INC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

197.68DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESTRAF EQUIP. REPAIR

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 197.68

Vendor GENERAL TRAFFIC CONTROLS, INC Total: 197.68

Vendor: GOLD WATCH LLC

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

750.00DISPOSAL FEESdisposal fees

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 750.00

Vendor GOLD WATCH LLC Total: 750.00

Vendor: HAWKINS, INC.

Fund: 641 - WATER

1,793.60CHEMICALSSodium hypo

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 1,793.60

Vendor HAWKINS, INC. Total: 1,793.60

Vendor: HEILBRUN FARM IND SUPP.INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

86.77EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEquip repairs

60.50DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

33.12BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

18.63EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEVHC MTC

41.16DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

161.94EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 402.12

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

20.62VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS - ADPTR

114.28VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

21.76VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

0.72DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

4.86EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEPATS

14.29DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

6.08EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEPARTS

32.28VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

87.94EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEPARTS

23.34VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

85.86VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

60.76VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

3.38VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

7.62VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

65.87DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

16.66DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

-4.86EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEPARTS

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 561.46

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

739.04DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 739.04

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

17.94EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEquip maint

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 17.94

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 35 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 8 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 641 - WATER

21.10DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESMaint sup

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 21.10

Vendor HEILBRUN FARM IND SUPP.INC. Total: 1,741.66

Vendor: HI-TECH AUTO SERVICE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

363.47VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 363.47

Vendor HI-TECH AUTO SERVICE Total: 363.47

Vendor: HOA SOLUTIONS, INC

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

1,950.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESEffluent Mtr

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 1,950.00

Fund: 641 - WATER

321.00EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEScada maint

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 321.00

Vendor HOA SOLUTIONS, INC Total: 2,271.00

Vendor: Holland Supply Inc

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

120.03DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 120.03

Fund: 223 - KENO

47.43DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

2,452.57DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 223 - KENO Total: 2,500.00

Vendor Holland Supply Inc Total: 2,620.03

Vendor: HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

12.94DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

50.02DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDPT SUP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 62.96

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

23.97DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 23.97

Vendor HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES Total: 86.93

Vendor: I C M A

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

496.59MEMBERSHIPSdues

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 496.59

Vendor I C M A Total: 496.59

Vendor: ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

1,175.84DEFERRED COMP EE PAYDEF COMP EMP DED

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 1,175.84

Vendor ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 Total: 1,175.84

Vendor: IDEAL LINEN SUP INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

91.80UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

91.80UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

91.80UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

31.14DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

4.79DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDPT SUP

91.80UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUNIFORMS

187.38JANITORIAL SUPPLIESCUS SUP

67.81JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJntrl sup

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 36 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 9 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

67.81JANITORIAL SUPPLIESJntrl sup

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 726.13

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

38.24DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

38.24DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

62.84DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

101.08DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

38.24DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 278.64

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

226.88DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 226.88

Fund: 641 - WATER

25.10CONTRACTUAL SERVICESMats

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 25.10

Vendor IDEAL LINEN SUP INC. Total: 1,256.75

Vendor: INDEPENDENT PLUMBING & HEATING, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

7.81BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 7.81

Vendor INDEPENDENT PLUMBING & HEATING, INC Total: 7.81

Vendor: INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

3,870.58MEDICARE W/H EE PAYABLEFED,FICA,MED W/H

14,515.63FICA W/H EE PAYABLEFED,FICA,MED W/H

33,024.79FED W/H EE PAYABLEFED,FICA,MED W/H

3,870.58MEDICARE W/H ER PAYABLEFED,FICA,MED W/H

14,515.63FICA W/H ER PAYABLEFED,FICA,MED W/H

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 69,797.21

Vendor INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE Total: 69,797.21

Vendor: INTRALINKS, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

337.50DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept.supply

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 337.50

Vendor INTRALINKS, INC Total: 337.50

Vendor: J G ELLIOTT CO.INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

875.00BONDINGbond

210.00VOLUNTEER FIREMANvol life ins.

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,085.00

Vendor J G ELLIOTT CO.INC. Total: 1,085.00

Vendor: JAMES A GUKEISEN

Fund: 641 - WATER

4.94REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 4.94

Vendor JAMES A GUKEISEN Total: 4.94

Vendor: JERRY HIGEL

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

1,042.42ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEELECT. MAIN

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 1,042.42

Vendor JERRY HIGEL Total: 1,042.42

Vendor: JIRDON AGRI CHEM.INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

8,184.96GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGRD MTC

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 37 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 10 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

181.13GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGRD MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 8,366.09

Vendor JIRDON AGRI CHEM.INC. Total: 8,366.09

Vendor: JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

6.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

19.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 25.99

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

30.98DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 30.98

Vendor JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Total: 56.97

Vendor: JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

20.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDPT SUP

23.96GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGRD MTC

27.93BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 72.88

Vendor JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Total: 72.88

Vendor: KACI L THORNBURG

Fund: 641 - WATER

18.41REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 18.41

Vendor KACI L THORNBURG Total: 18.41

Vendor: KEELIE N KEARNS

Fund: 641 - WATER

10.26REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 10.26

Vendor KEELIE N KEARNS Total: 10.26

Vendor: KRIZ-DAVIS COMPANY INC.

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

22.84DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDept supplies

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 22.84

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

205.20ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEElectric Maint

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 205.20

Fund: 641 - WATER

17.32DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDept sup

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 17.32

Vendor KRIZ-DAVIS COMPANY INC. Total: 245.36

Vendor: LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGMENT INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

100.00CONSULTING SERVICESCONSULTING

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 100.00

Vendor LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGMENT INC Total: 100.00

Vendor: LLZ RENTALS LLC

Fund: 641 - WATER

10.26REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REF

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 10.26

Vendor LLZ RENTALS LLC Total: 10.26

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 38 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 11 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: LYNN GARTON

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

35.00GASOLINEREIMB TRVL EXP

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 35.00

Vendor LYNN GARTON Total: 35.00

Vendor: LYNN PEAVEY CO INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

390.20INVESTIGATION SUPPLIESINVEST SUPPL

110.76INVESTIGATION SUPPLIESINVEST SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 500.96

Vendor LYNN PEAVEY CO INC Total: 500.96

Vendor: M.C. SCHAFF & ASSOC, INC

Fund: 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

14,960.00ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTLB840 Airport water ext

Fund 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Total: 14,960.00

Vendor M.C. SCHAFF & ASSOC, INC Total: 14,960.00

Vendor: MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

381.36DISABILITY INSURANCELIFE & DIS INS

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 381.36

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

32.88LIFE INS EE PAYABLELIFE & DIS INS

862.95DIS INC INS EE PAYABLELIFE & DIS INS

771.84LIFE INS ER PAYABLELIFE & DIS INS

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 1,667.67

Vendor MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO, INC Total: 2,049.03

Vendor: MAILFINANCE INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

153.09RENT-MACHINESPOSTAGE MCHN LEASE

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 153.09

Vendor MAILFINANCE INC Total: 153.09

Vendor: MARC CASSEY ESSERT

Fund: 641 - WATER

28.87REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 28.87

Vendor MARC CASSEY ESSERT Total: 28.87

Vendor: MARTY'S ELECTRIC SERVICE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

641.45BUILDING MAINTENANCEBLDG MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 641.45

Vendor MARTY'S ELECTRIC SERVICE Total: 641.45

Vendor: MATHESON TRI-GAS INC

Fund: 641 - WATER

82.34DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESMaint sup

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 82.34

Vendor MATHESON TRI-GAS INC Total: 82.34

Vendor: MATT FRIEND TRUCK EQUIP, INC

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

316.50VEHICLE MAINTENANCEPARTS

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 316.50

Vendor MATT FRIEND TRUCK EQUIP, INC Total: 316.50

Vendor: MENARDS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

123.57DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 39 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 12 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

55.70DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

18.11BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

124.89BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

95.14DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

22.93DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

20.97DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

49.98BUILDING MAINTENANCEdept suppies

118.10DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 629.39

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

14.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 14.99

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

587.97EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

11.29DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP  SUP

11.53DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

35.94DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 646.73

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

9.90DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDept sup

30.75DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESMaint sup

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 40.65

Fund: 641 - WATER

118.04DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESMaint sup

10.69DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESELEC MAINT

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 128.73

Vendor MENARDS Total: 1,460.49

Vendor: MIKE'S SCREEN PRINTING

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

10.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESdept supl.

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 10.00

Vendor MIKE'S SCREEN PRINTING Total: 10.00

Vendor: MONEY WISE OFFICE SUPPLIES

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

31.48DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

16.48DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

7.26DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

10.04DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

7.82DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

50.20DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

132.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

28.97DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

7.58DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUP

330.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 621.83

Vendor MONEY WISE OFFICE SUPPLIES Total: 621.83

Vendor: MOORE WALLACE NORTH AMERICA, INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

41.48DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 41.48

Vendor MOORE WALLACE NORTH AMERICA, INC. Total: 41.48

Vendor: NE CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

1,982.31CHILD SUPPORT EE PAYCHILD SUPPORT

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 1,982.31

Vendor NE CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER Total: 1,982.31

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 40 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 13 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: NE DEPT OF REVENUE

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

17,810.36STATE W/H EE PAYABLESTATE PYRL W/H

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 17,810.36

Vendor NE DEPT OF REVENUE Total: 17,810.36

Vendor: NE LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING CENTER

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

80.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCETRAINING

80.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCETRAINING

80.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCETRAINING

10.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCETRAINING

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 250.00

Vendor NE LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING CENTER Total: 250.00

Vendor: NE MUNICIPAL FIRE CHIEFS ASSOC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

50.00MEMBERSHIPSchief dues

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 50.00

Vendor NE MUNICIPAL FIRE CHIEFS ASSOC. Total: 50.00

Vendor: NEBRASKALAND TIRE

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

944.04VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

44.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

88.18VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,076.22

Vendor NEBRASKALAND TIRE Total: 1,076.22

Vendor: NORTHERN SAFETY COMPANY, INC.

Fund: 641 - WATER

370.14DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDept sup

74.95UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGDept sup

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 445.09

Vendor NORTHERN SAFETY COMPANY, INC. Total: 445.09

Vendor: NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS, INC. OF SCB

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

12.18GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGRD MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 12.18

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

10.21DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSafety sup

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 10.21

Vendor NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS, INC. OF SCB Total: 22.39

Vendor: ONE CALL CONCEPTS

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

41.15CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCABLE LOCATES

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 41.15

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

41.15CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCABLE LOCATES

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 41.15

Fund: 641 - WATER

41.15CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCABLE LOCATES

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 41.15

Vendor ONE CALL CONCEPTS Total: 123.45

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 41 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 14 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: PANHANDLE CONCRETE PROD INC.

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

1,200.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESMaint sup

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 1,200.00

Vendor PANHANDLE CONCRETE PROD INC. Total: 1,200.00

Vendor: PANHANDLE COOP INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

885.85GASOLINEfuel bill

20.23GASOLINEFUEL

40.40SCHOOL & CONFERENCEFUEL

39.57SCHOOL & CONFERENCEFUEL

168.67GASOLINEFUEL

5,121.55GASOLINEGASOLINE

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 6,276.27

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

1,282.00GASOLINEUNLEADED GASOLINE

3,513.61OTHER FUELDIESEL FUEL & PROPANE

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 4,795.61

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

9,414.36GASOLINEfleet fuel

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 9,414.36

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

833.05GASOLINEFuel

561.85OTHER FUELFuel

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 1,394.90

Fund: 641 - WATER

1,856.15GASOLINEFuel

224.63OTHER FUELFuel

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 2,080.78

Vendor PANHANDLE COOP INC. Total: 23,961.92

Vendor: PANHANDLE HUMANE SOC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

4,881.32CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRCTUAL SVC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 4,881.32

Vendor PANHANDLE HUMANE SOC Total: 4,881.32

Vendor: PAUL REED CONSTRUCTION & SUPPLY,INC

Fund: 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

123,929.78ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTLB840 Airport water ext

Fund 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Total: 123,929.78

Vendor PAUL REED CONSTRUCTION & SUPPLY,INC Total: 123,929.78

Vendor: PLATTE VALLEY BANK

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

9,458.46HSA EE PAYABLEHSA EE & ER

2,117.50HSA ER PAYABLEHSA EE & ER

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 11,575.96

Vendor PLATTE VALLEY BANK Total: 11,575.96

Vendor: POSTMASTER

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

67.54POSTAGEPostage

110.06POSTAGEPOSTAGE FOR UTIL BILLS

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 177.60

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

67.54POSTAGEPostage

110.06POSTAGEPOSTAGE FOR UTIL BILLS

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 177.60

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 42 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 15 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 641 - WATER

67.53POSTAGEPostage

110.06POSTAGEPOSTAGE FOR UTIL BILLS

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 177.59

Vendor POSTMASTER Total: 532.79

Vendor: PRINT EXPRESS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

54.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 54.00

Vendor PRINT EXPRESS Total: 54.00

Vendor: PROTEX CENTRAL, INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

106.87EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQUIP MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 106.87

Vendor PROTEX CENTRAL, INC. Total: 106.87

Vendor: QUILL CORP

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

98.79DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPP

399.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 498.78

Fund: 215 - SPECIAL PROJECTS

399.99DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 215 - SPECIAL PROJECTS Total: 399.99

Vendor QUILL CORP Total: 898.77

Vendor: RAILROAD MANAGEMENT CO III,LLC

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

146.16RENT-LANDSewer crossing rent

146.16RENT-LANDSewer crossing rent

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 292.32

Vendor RAILROAD MANAGEMENT CO III,LLC Total: 292.32

Vendor: RCI

Fund: 812 - HEALTH INSURANCE

30,752.38CLAIMS EXPENSE11/8/13 MEDICAL

43,769.93CLAIMS EXPENSE11/8/13 MEDICAL

50.00FLEXIBLE BENFT EXPENSES11/8/13 MEDICAL

Fund 812 - HEALTH INSURANCE Total: 74,572.31

Vendor RCI Total: 74,572.31

Vendor: REVIZE LLC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

2,568.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICEScontract

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 2,568.00

Vendor REVIZE LLC Total: 2,568.00

Vendor: RICHARD GODINA

Fund: 641 - WATER

25.87REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REF

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 25.87

Vendor RICHARD GODINA Total: 25.87

Vendor: ROBERTA J BOYD

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

6.31POSTAGEPstg rmb

16.11POSTAGEPstg reim

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 22.42

Vendor ROBERTA J BOYD Total: 22.42

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 43 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 16 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: ROBINSON ELECTRIC

Fund: 641 - WATER

373.32ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEELEC MAINT

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 373.32

Vendor ROBINSON ELECTRIC Total: 373.32

Vendor: ROOSEVELT P P DIST

Fund: 641 - WATER

1,961.03ELECTRIC POWERPumping fees

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 1,961.03

Vendor ROOSEVELT P P DIST Total: 1,961.03

Vendor: S M E C

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

261.50SMEC EE PAYABLESMEC EMP DED

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 261.50

Vendor S M E C Total: 261.50

Vendor: SCB FIREFIGHTERS UNION LOCAL 1454

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

195.00FIRE UNION DUES EE PAYUNION DUES

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 195.00

Vendor SCB FIREFIGHTERS UNION LOCAL 1454 Total: 195.00

Vendor: SCB POLICE OFFICERS ASS'N

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

378.00POL UNION DUES EE PAYUNION DUES

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 378.00

Vendor SCB POLICE OFFICERS ASS'N Total: 378.00

Vendor: SCOTTSBLUFF BODY & PAINT, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

25.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTOW SERVICE

25.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTOW SERVICE

134.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

70.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTOW SERVICE

60.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTOW SERVICE

70.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTOW SERVICE

70.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTOW SERVICE

150.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESTOW SERVICE

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 604.00

Vendor SCOTTSBLUFF BODY & PAINT, INC Total: 604.00

Vendor: SCOTTSBLUFF LANDSCAPING INC

Fund: 223 - KENO

425.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESCON SVC

Fund 223 - KENO Total: 425.00

Vendor SCOTTSBLUFF LANDSCAPING INC Total: 425.00

Vendor: SCOTTSBLUFF SCREENPRINTING

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

85.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

85.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 170.00

Fund: 641 - WATER

879.54UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUniform sup

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 879.54

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

92.00UNIFORMS & CLOTHINGUniform clothing

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 92.00

Vendor SCOTTSBLUFF SCREENPRINTING Total: 1,141.54

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 44 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 17 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: SEEWALD CONSTRUCTION CO

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

42,063.60STRUCTURESCON SRV

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 42,063.60

Vendor SEEWALD CONSTRUCTION CO Total: 42,063.60

Vendor: SHIFT CALENDERS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

38.58DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESshift calenders

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 38.58

Vendor SHIFT CALENDERS Total: 38.58

Vendor: SHOWCASES

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

143.64DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDpt sup

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 143.64

Vendor SHOWCASES Total: 143.64

Vendor: SIMMONS OLSEN LAW FIRM, P.C.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

6,086.85CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

3,917.77CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

733.89LEGAL FEESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 10,738.51

Fund: 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

97.50CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Fund 224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Total: 97.50

Fund: 661 - STORMWATER

675.00LEGAL FEESCONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Fund 661 - STORMWATER Total: 675.00

Vendor SIMMONS OLSEN LAW FIRM, P.C. Total: 11,511.01

Vendor: SIMON CONTRACTORS

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

168.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 168.00

Vendor SIMON CONTRACTORS Total: 168.00

Vendor: SIMON CONTRACTORS

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

318.50STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

363.75STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

190.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

630.12STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESGRAVEL

490.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

557.75STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

275.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

291.21STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESGRAVEL

104.91STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESGRAVEL

441.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

713.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

550.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

690.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

318.51STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESGRAVEL

86.00STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESGRAVEL

405.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

225.00STREET MAINTENANCEconcrete

437.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

315.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

168.41STREET REPAIR SUPPLIESGRAVEL

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 45 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 18 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

477.00STREET MAINTENANCECONCRETE

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 8,047.16

Vendor SIMON CONTRACTORS Total: 8,047.16

Vendor: SLAFTER OIL CO INC.

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

159.15OTHER FUELother fuel

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 159.15

Vendor SLAFTER OIL CO INC. Total: 159.15

Vendor: SNELL SERVICES INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

310.00ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEELC MTC

70.00BUILDING MAINTENANCEBldg maint

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 380.00

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

81.38ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEELC MTC

1,196.28ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEELC MTC

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 1,277.66

Fund: 223 - KENO

5,500.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESELC MTC

Fund 223 - KENO Total: 5,500.00

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

70.00ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEElectric maint

140.00ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCEElectrical maint

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 210.00

Vendor SNELL SERVICES INC. Total: 7,367.66

Vendor: STAPLES

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

8.28DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

41.29DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESSUPP

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 49.57

Vendor STAPLES Total: 49.57

Vendor: STAR HERALD

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

20.23PUBLICATIONSPUBLICATION

67.21PROMOTIONAL SUPPLIESLegal Publishing

18.32LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

298.48LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

102.68LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

264.66LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

575.29RECRUITMENTLegal Publishing

139.00SUBSCRIPTIONSNews sbscr

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,485.87

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

30.45LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 30.45

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

164.83LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 164.83

Fund: 641 - WATER

10.68LEGAL PUBLICATIONSLegal Publishing

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 10.68

Vendor STAR HERALD Total: 1,691.83

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 46 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 19 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: STATE FIRE MARSHALL

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

100.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESclass fees

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 100.00

Vendor STATE FIRE MARSHALL Total: 100.00

Vendor: STATE OF NEBRASKA DEPT OF HEALTH

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

460.00LICENSE/PERMITSLic renewals

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 460.00

Fund: 641 - WATER

1,265.00LICENSE/PERMITSLic renewals

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 1,265.00

Vendor STATE OF NEBRASKA DEPT OF HEALTH Total: 1,725.00

Vendor: STATE OF NEBR-DEPT OF ADMIN SVC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

2.16TELEPHONETELEPHONE

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 2.16

Vendor STATE OF NEBR-DEPT OF ADMIN SVC Total: 2.16

Vendor: TEAM CHEVROLET INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

27.52VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVEH MAINT

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 27.52

Vendor TEAM CHEVROLET INC Total: 27.52

Vendor: THE GALE GROUP

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

180.62BOOKSBks

42.23BOOKSBks

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 222.85

Vendor THE GALE GROUP Total: 222.85

Vendor: THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

106.47GROUNDS MAINTENANCEGND MTC

267.30BUILDING MAINTENANCEGRD MTC

80.00BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

52.98BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 506.75

Vendor THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO Total: 506.75

Vendor: THOMPSON GLASS INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

163.00BUILDING MAINTENANCEBDG MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 163.00

Vendor THOMPSON GLASS INC Total: 163.00

Vendor: TIM MEISTER

Fund: 641 - WATER

31.27REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 31.27

Vendor TIM MEISTER Total: 31.27

Vendor: TOMMY'S JOHNNY'S INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

770.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCON SERV

490.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCON SERV

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,260.00

Vendor TOMMY'S JOHNNY'S INC Total: 1,260.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 47 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 20 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: TOTAL FUNDS BY HASLER

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

1,000.00POSTAGEPOSTAGE

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,000.00

Vendor TOTAL FUNDS BY HASLER Total: 1,000.00

Vendor: TRACY L GRIEB

Fund: 641 - WATER

17.62REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 17.62

Vendor TRACY L GRIEB Total: 17.62

Vendor: TRAILS WEST PAVILLION

Fund: 641 - WATER

72.46REFUNDS PAYABLEUTILITY REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 72.46

Vendor TRAILS WEST PAVILLION Total: 72.46

Vendor: TRI STATE ROOFING

Fund: 641 - WATER

26.65REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 26.65

Vendor TRI STATE ROOFING Total: 26.65

Vendor: TRI-TECH INC.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

289.65INVESTIGATION SUPPLIESINVEST SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 289.65

Vendor TRI-TECH INC. Total: 289.65

Vendor: TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

625.00EQUIPMENTcontr.serv.

750.00EQUIPMENTcontr.serv

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,375.00

Vendor TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC Total: 1,375.00

Vendor: U S BANK

Fund: 412 - LEASE CORPORATION

315,000.00DEBT SERVICEBond payt

46,395.00DEBT SERVICE-INTERESTBond payt

195,000.00DEBT SERVICEbond payt

23,392.50DEBT SERVICE-INTERESTbond payt

Fund 412 - LEASE CORPORATION Total: 579,787.50

Vendor U S BANK Total: 579,787.50

Vendor: US BANK-CPS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

383.76SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCL&CON

140.28SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCL&CON

71.15BOOKSBOOKS

9.25CONSULTING SERVICESCONSULTING

520.00SCHOOL & CONFERENCESCL&CON

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 1,124.44

Vendor US BANK-CPS Total: 1,124.44

Vendor: VALLEY BANK & TRUST CO

Fund: 218 - PUBLIC SAFETY

45,000.00DEBT SERVICEbond payt

11,493.75DEBT SERVICE-INTERESTbond payt

Fund 218 - PUBLIC SAFETY Total: 56,493.75

Vendor VALLEY BANK & TRUST CO Total: 56,493.75

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 48 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 21 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: VERIZON WIRELESS

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

212.88CELLULAR PHONEcell phones

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 212.88

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

47.34CELLULAR PHONECELL PH

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 47.34

Fund: 641 - WATER

82.39CELLULAR PHONECELL PH

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 82.39

Vendor VERIZON WIRELESS Total: 342.61

Vendor: VISTABEAM

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

8.00CONTRACTUAL SERVICESCON SVC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 8.00

Fund: 215 - SPECIAL PROJECTS

8.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 215 - SPECIAL PROJECTS Total: 8.00

Vendor VISTABEAM Total: 16.00

Vendor: WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

40.72DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEPT SUPPL

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 40.72

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

20.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 20.00

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

33.97DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESMaint sup

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 33.97

Vendor WALMART COMMUNITY/GEMB Total: 94.69

Vendor: WATCHGUARD VIDEO

Fund: 218 - PUBLIC SAFETY

8,040.00DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESPUB SAFETY-SUPPLIES

Fund 218 - PUBLIC SAFETY Total: 8,040.00

Vendor WATCHGUARD VIDEO Total: 8,040.00

Vendor: WELLS FARGO BANK N.A.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

104.16CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

23.15CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

57.87CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

57.87CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

104.16CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

138.87CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

11.57CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 497.65

Fund: 212 - TRANSPORTATION

150.45CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

Fund 212 - TRANSPORTATION Total: 150.45

Fund: 213 - CEMETERY

23.15CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

Fund 213 - CEMETERY Total: 23.15

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

162.02CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 162.02

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 49 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 22 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

92.58CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 92.58

Fund: 641 - WATER

107.58CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 107.58

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

7,034.04REGULAR RETIRE EE PAYRETIREMENT

2,299.08RETIRE FIRE EE PAYABLERETIREMENT

5,666.10RETIRE POLICE EE PAYRETIREMENT

6,650.92REGULAR RETIRE ER PAYRETIREMENT

3,968.14RETIRE-FIRE ER PAYABLERETIREMENT

5,548.69RETIRE-POLICE ER PAYRETIREMENT

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 31,166.97

Fund: 721 - GIS SERVICES

11.57CONTRACTUAL SERVICESfees

Fund 721 - GIS SERVICES Total: 11.57

Vendor WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. Total: 32,211.97

Vendor: WESTCO

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

286.90EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEEQP MTC

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 286.90

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

131.58CONTRACTUAL SERVICEScontractual services

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 131.58

Vendor WESTCO Total: 418.48

Vendor: WESTERN NEBRASKA HOUSING OPP

Fund: 641 - WATER

3.67REFUNDS PAYABLEUTIL REF

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 3.67

Vendor WESTERN NEBRASKA HOUSING OPP Total: 3.67

Vendor: WESTERN PATHOLOGY CONSULTANTS, INC

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

95.50CONTRACTUAL SERVICEScontract services

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 95.50

Vendor WESTERN PATHOLOGY CONSULTANTS, INC Total: 95.50

Vendor: WESTERN TRAVEL TERMINAL

Fund: 631 - WASTEWATER

54.00VEHICLE MAINTENANCEVehicle maint

Fund 631 - WASTEWATER Total: 54.00

Vendor WESTERN TRAVEL TERMINAL Total: 54.00

Vendor: WILLIAM DALLAS POWELL

Fund: 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

45.92SALES & SERVICECONST DUMPSTER REFUND

Fund 621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES Total: 45.92

Fund: 641 - WATER

3.22SALES TAX PAYABLECONST DUMPSTER REFUND

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 3.22

Vendor WILLIAM DALLAS POWELL Total: 49.14

Vendor: WINGATE BY WYNDHAM

Fund: 641 - WATER

205.52SCHOOL & CONFERENCEconf hotel

Fund 641 - WATER Total: 205.52

Vendor WINGATE BY WYNDHAM Total: 205.52

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 50 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 23 of 27

Amount(None)(None)Account NameDescription (Payable) (None)

Vendor: YMCA OF SCOTTSBLUFF

Fund: 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL

877.49YMCA PAY EEFITNESS PROG

565.96YMCA PAY ERFITNESS PROG

Fund 713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL Total: 1,443.45

Vendor YMCA OF SCOTTSBLUFF Total: 1,443.45

Vendor: ZM LUMBER CO.

Fund: 111 - GENERAL

1.19DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

404.57DEPARTMENT SUPPLIESDEP SUP

Fund 111 - GENERAL Total: 405.76

Vendor ZM LUMBER CO. Total: 405.76

Grand Total: 1,238,395.72

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 51 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 24 of 27

Report Summary

Fund Summary

 Payment AmountFund Expense Amount

111 - GENERAL 381.36103,558.49

212 - TRANSPORTATION 0.0019,668.92

213 - CEMETERY 0.002,270.57

215 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 0.00407.99

218 - PUBLIC SAFETY 0.0064,533.75

223 - KENO 0.008,425.00

224 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 0.00138,987.28

412 - LEASE CORPORATION 0.00579,787.50

621 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 177.6084,028.16

631 - WASTEWATER 177.606,752.94

641 - WATER 177.5911,002.12

661 - STORMWATER 0.001,125.15

713 - CASH & INVESTMENT POOL 137,729.90137,729.90

721 - GIS SERVICES 0.0045.64

812 - HEALTH INSURANCE 74,572.3180,072.31

213,216.36Grand Total: 1,238,395.72

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

111-51281-142 DISABILITY INSURANCE 381.36381.36

111-52111-111 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00162.67

111-52111-112 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0016.48

111-52111-113 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0010.00

111-52111-114 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.007.26

111-52111-115 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0010.04

111-52111-116 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00345.32

111-52111-121 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0086.75

111-52111-141 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00981.35

111-52111-142 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00748.37

111-52111-151 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00208.44

111-52111-171 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.001,204.50

111-52121-151 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 0.00311.41

111-52121-171 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 0.00187.38

111-52131-114 PROMOTIONAL SUPPLIES 0.0067.21

111-52163-142 INVESTIGATION SUPPLIES 0.00861.07

111-52164-141 VOLUNTEER FIREMAN 0.00210.00

111-52181-142 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING 0.00442.66

111-52211-121 PUBLICATIONS 0.0049.25

111-52211-143 PUBLICATIONS 0.0020.23

111-52222-121 BOOKS 0.0071.15

111-52222-151 BOOKS 0.00222.85

111-52225-151 SUBSCRIPTIONS 0.00139.00

111-52311-114 MEMBERSHIPS 0.00496.59

111-52311-121 MEMBERSHIPS 0.0095.00

111-52311-141 MEMBERSHIPS 0.0050.00

111-52411-111 POSTAGE 0.001,000.00

111-52411-151 POSTAGE 0.0022.42

111-52511-121 GASOLINE 0.00168.67

111-52511-141 GASOLINE 0.00885.85

111-52511-142 GASOLINE 0.005,121.55

111-52511-171 GASOLINE 0.0020.23

111-53111-111 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00104.16

111-53111-112 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00118.65

111-53111-114 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.006,086.85

111-53111-116 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.002,568.00

111-53111-121 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0057.87

111-53111-141 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00100.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 52 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 25 of 27

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

111-53111-142 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.009,391.46

111-53111-151 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00104.16

111-53111-171 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.002,954.77

111-53111-172 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0011.57

111-53121-142 CONSULTING SERVICES 0.00109.25

111-53161-112 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.0018.32

111-53161-115 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.00298.48

111-53161-121 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.00102.68

111-53161-142 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.00264.66

111-53211-114 LEGAL FEES 0.00371.00

111-53211-142 LEGAL FEES 0.00733.89

111-53421-111 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.00641.45

111-53421-141 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.00120.90

111-53421-142 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.0070.93

111-53421-151 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.0070.00

111-53421-171 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 0.00775.14

111-53431-171 ELECTRICAL MAINTENAN… 0.00310.00

111-53441-111 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00159.45

111-53441-141 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00112.31

111-53441-142 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.0013.67

111-53441-171 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.001,759.87

111-53451-111 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.0027.52

111-53451-142 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.001,210.22

111-53451-171 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.00438.28

111-53471-171 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 0.008,508.70

111-53561-111 TELEPHONE 0.00235.03

111-53561-112 TELEPHONE 0.0069.30

111-53561-114 TELEPHONE 0.0067.80

111-53561-115 TELEPHONE 0.0037.07

111-53561-116 TELEPHONE 0.00227.80

111-53561-121 TELEPHONE 0.00210.88

111-53561-141 TELEPHONE 0.00291.12

111-53561-142 TELEPHONE 0.001,615.50

111-53561-143 TELEPHONE 0.002.16

111-53561-151 TELEPHONE 0.00551.28

111-53561-171 TELEPHONE 0.00170.25

111-53561-172 TELEPHONE 0.00168.75

111-53571-141 CELLULAR PHONE 0.00212.88

111-53631-111 RENT-MACHINES 0.00153.09

111-53631-142 RENT-MACHINES 0.0047.86

111-53711-114 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.0040.40

111-53711-141 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.00230.89

111-53711-142 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.001,074.23

111-53711-171 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.001,044.04

111-53811-114 BONDING 0.00875.00

111-53913-112 RECRUITMENT 0.00575.29

111-54311-172 STRUCTURES 0.0042,063.60

111-54411-111 EQUIPMENT 0.001,375.00

212-52111-212 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.001,897.50

212-52171-212 STREET REPAIR SUPPLIES 0.001,599.16

212-52511-212 GASOLINE 0.001,282.00

212-52521-212 OTHER FUEL 0.003,513.61

212-53111-212 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00211.21

212-53161-212 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.0030.45

212-53431-212 ELECTRICAL MAINTENAN… 0.001,042.42

212-53441-212 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.0094.02

212-53451-212 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.002,224.61

212-53491-212 STREET MAINTENANCE 0.006,616.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 53 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 26 of 27

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

212-53561-212 TELEPHONE 0.00517.43

212-54322-212 STREET PROJECTS 0.00640.51

213-52111-213 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00260.53

213-53111-213 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0023.15

213-53431-213 ELECTRICAL MAINTENAN… 0.001,277.66

213-53441-213 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00639.93

213-53561-213 TELEPHONE 0.0069.30

215-52111-142 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00399.99

215-52111-172 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.008.00

218-52111-142 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.008,040.00

218-57111-142 DEBT SERVICE 0.0045,000.00

218-57115-142 DEBT SERVICE-INTEREST 0.0011,493.75

223-52111-171 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.008,425.00

224-53111-114 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0097.50

224-59111-114 ECONOMIC DEVELOPME… 0.00138,889.78

412-57111-111 DEBT SERVICE 0.00510,000.00

412-57115-111 DEBT SERVICE-INTEREST 0.0069,787.50

621-46111-621 SALES & SERVICE 0.0045.92

621-52111-621 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.0031,803.38

621-52411-621 POSTAGE 177.60177.60

621-52511-621 GASOLINE 0.009,414.36

621-52521-621 OTHER FUEL 0.00159.15

621-53111-621 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00293.60

621-53193-621 DISPOSAL FEES 0.0038,991.91

621-53451-621 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.003,000.64

621-53561-621 TELEPHONE 0.00141.60

631-52111-631 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.003,321.48

631-52411-631 POSTAGE 177.60177.60

631-52511-631 GASOLINE 0.00868.05

631-52521-631 OTHER FUEL 0.00561.85

631-53111-631 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00133.73

631-53161-631 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.00164.83

631-53431-631 ELECTRICAL MAINTENAN… 0.00415.20

631-53441-631 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00120.94

631-53451-631 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 0.0054.00

631-53561-631 TELEPHONE 0.00135.60

631-53571-631 CELLULAR PHONE 0.0047.34

631-53611-631 RENT-LAND 0.00292.32

631-59211-631 LICENSE/PERMITS 0.00460.00

641-21311 SALES TAX PAYABLE 0.003.22

641-21416 REFUNDS PAYABLE 0.00550.44

641-46118-000 UTILITY PENALTIES 0.0013.42

641-52111-641 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 0.00776.11

641-52117-641 SAMPLES 0.00120.00

641-52181-641 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING 0.00954.49

641-52411-641 POSTAGE 177.59214.84

641-52511-641 GASOLINE 0.001,856.15

641-52521-641 OTHER FUEL 0.00224.63

641-52611-641 CHEMICALS 0.001,793.60

641-53111-641 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00173.83

641-53161-641 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 0.0010.68

641-53431-641 ELECTRICAL MAINTENAN… 0.00373.32

641-53441-641 EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN… 0.00321.00

641-53531-641 ELECTRIC POWER 0.001,961.03

641-53561-641 TELEPHONE 0.00102.45

641-53571-641 CELLULAR PHONE 0.0082.39

641-53711-641 SCHOOL & CONFERENCE 0.00205.52

641-59211-641 LICENSE/PERMITS 0.001,265.00

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 54 / 178



Expense Approval Report   Post Dates: 11/5/2013 - 11/18/2013

11/15/2013 11:08:43 AM Page 27 of 27

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

661-52181-661 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING 0.0092.00

661-53111-661 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.00325.00

661-53211-661 LEGAL FEES 0.00675.00

661-53561-661 TELEPHONE 0.0033.15

713-21512 MEDICARE W/H EE PAYAB… 3,870.583,870.58

713-21513 FICA W/H EE PAYABLE 14,515.6314,515.63

713-21514 FED W/H EE PAYABLE 33,024.7933,024.79

713-21515 STATE W/H EE PAYABLE 17,810.3617,810.36

713-21517 POL UNION DUES EE PAY 378.00378.00

713-21518 FIRE UNION DUES EE PAY 195.00195.00

713-21523 LIFE INS EE PAYABLE 105.09105.09

713-21524 SMEC EE PAYABLE 261.50261.50

713-21527 WAGE ATTACHMENT EE … 203.42203.42

713-21528 REGULAR RETIRE EE PAY 7,034.047,034.04

713-21529 DEFERRED COMP EE PAY 1,175.841,175.84

713-21531 RETIRE FIRE EE PAYABLE 2,299.082,299.08

713-21533 RETIRE POLICE EE PAY 5,666.105,666.10

713-21534 DIS INC INS EE PAYABLE 862.95862.95

713-21539 CHILD SUPPORT EE PAY 1,982.311,982.31

713-21540 YMCA PAY EE 877.49877.49

713-21541 HSA EE PAYABLE 9,458.469,458.46

713-21712 MEDICARE W/H ER PAYAB… 3,870.583,870.58

713-21713 FICA W/H ER PAYABLE 14,515.6314,515.63

713-21723 LIFE INS ER PAYABLE 771.84771.84

713-21728 REGULAR RETIRE ER PAY 6,650.926,650.92

713-21731 RETIRE-FIRE ER PAYABLE 3,968.143,968.14

713-21733 RETIRE-POLICE ER PAY 5,548.695,548.69

713-21740 YMCA PAY ER 565.96565.96

713-21741 HSA ER PAYABLE 2,117.502,117.50

721-53111-721 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.0011.57

721-53561-721 TELEPHONE 0.0034.07

812-53111-112 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 0.005,500.00

812-53862-112 CLAIMS EXPENSE 74,522.3174,522.31

812-53863-112 FLEXIBLE BENFT EXPENSES 50.0050.00

Grand Total: 213,216.361,238,395.72

Project Account Summary

 Payment AmountProject Account Key Expense Amount

**None** 213,216.361,236,172.40

2117753111 0.00770.00

2117753471 0.0012.18

2118152111 0.00399.99

2122352111 0.008.00

6002053111 0.00325.00

6002053211 0.00675.00

6002053561 0.0033.15

Grand Total: 213,216.361,238,395.72

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 55 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Pub. Hear.1

Council to conduct a public hearing as advertised for this date at 
6:05 p.m., regarding the acquisition of property located at 1308 
East 17th Street, Scottsbluff for the purpose of stormwater 
management.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 56 / 178



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No.  
 

For meeting of:  October 21, 2013 

 
AGENDA TITLE:   Scottsbluff Drain Board recommends purchase of property 

 

SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION:   Public Works 
 

PRESENTATION BY: Legal Council 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: The City has been approached by a property owner to buy a piece 
of property located at 1308 E 17th Street.  This property is one of the high priority properties for 
the City to acquire to eliminate liability and provide for future improvements to the Scottsbluff 
Drain.  The property has two structures located directly over the Scottsbluff Drain, including a 
house with a direct sewer connection to the Drain.  The property owner is asking for the taxable 
value of the property, about $15,000.  The Stormwater budget has about $200,000 budgeted in 
a fund set aside solely for the purpose of making improvements to the Scottsbluff Drain.  This 
money can be used for the purchase of this property.  
 

 

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:     
 

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution  Ordinance  Contract  Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)    

 

NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No     Further Instructions    
Mark Bohl, Public Works Director 
Lynn Garton, Wastewater Supervisor 
Annie Folck, Stormwater Program Specialist 

 
 
 

APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       
                                 City Manager 

  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 57 / 178



 1 

SCOTTSBLUFF DRAIN 

OPERATING COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 

October 10, 2013 

 

 

The Scottsbluff Drain Operating Committee met in session on October 10, 2013 in the 

Scottsbluff City Hall Council Chambers, 2525 Circle Drive, Scottsbluff, Nebraska.  Notice of the 

meeting was published Sunday, October 6, 2013 in the Star-Herald, Scottsbluff, Nebraska.  

Notice of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was posted as per state statute. 

 

Chairman Lynn Garton called the meeting to order at 1:31 p.m. 

 

Members present:  Mark Masterton, Bob Bennettt, Lynn Garton 

 

Moved by Committee Member Masterton, seconded by Committee Member Bennet that the 

minutes of the July 30, 2013 meeting be approved.    

Vote of Committee: “YEAS” Masterton, Bennettt, Garton  “NAYS” None.  Absent:  

None 

 

Chairman Garton began discussion regarding the sale of property adjacent to the Scottsbluff 

Drain along Avenue B.  Legal council recommended that everything pertaining to easements, 

access to the drain, and flood mitigation should be addressed in the developer’s agreement.  

Access to the drain needs to be permanent and should be retained in the deed. 

 

Chairman Garton began discussion regarding the proposed use of a covered portion of the Drain 

at 14
th

 Avenue and Highway 26 (north of Monument Car Wash) by Wolf Auto.  Garton stated 

that in order for this piece of property to be utilized, a survey of the area would be needed, and 

this cost should be absorbed by Wolf Auto.  Kent Hadenfelt, legal council for the Drain Board, 

stated that when the Drainage District dissolved, the land within city limits was to be transferred 

to the City, and the land outside of city limits was to be transferred to the County.  However, no 

records have been found to show that any of the land was actually transferred to the City, so at 

this time, it appears that all property is owned by the County.  Before Wolf Auto can use this 

piece of property, more research needs to be done to ensure that the Drain Board has the right to 

allow them to use it.  Hadenfelt recommends that a license agreement be drawn up to give them 

the rights to the property, which could then be terminated at any time at the discretion of the 

Drain Board.  Chairman Garton stated that it would be possible to charge rent for the property.  

Committee Member Masterton moved that a license agreement be drawn up with six month 

termination period.  Committee member Bennet seconded. 

 Vote of Committee: “YEAS” Masterton, Bennet, Garton “NAYS” None.  Absent: None 

 

Chairman Garton began discussion about the Reganis development, located near the intersection 

of 27
th

 St and Highway 26.  Legal recommended that all requirements for the development, 

including access to the drain and flood mitigation, be addressed in the developer’s agreement. 

 

Chairman Garton began discussion on the potential purchase of property located at 1308 E 17
th

 

Street.  The owner of the property has approached the City to inquire if the City would be 

interested in purchasing this property.  The Drain Committee has discussed acquiring properties 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 58 / 178



 2 

in this area to eliminate liability and provide for future uses of the drain.  Committee Member 

Masterton stated that the City and County should split the costs of maintenance and property 

purchase evenly.  Chairman Garton stated that the current agreement requires about a 60/40 split 

for maintenance costs, which is based on the percentage of areas within the City and the County 

that drain to the Scottsbluff Drain.  Hadenfelt stated that the current arrangement addresses only 

maintenance, and there is nothing in the agreement addressing property purchase.  Chairman 

Garton stated that this property has two structures located directly over the top of the covered 

portion of the Scottsbluff Drain.  One of these structures is a house which has a sewer connection 

directly connected to the Scottsbluff Drain. The owner is asking for $15,000, which is the taxable 

value of the property.  Hadenfelt stated that this would set a precedent for purchasing these 

properties at fair market value.  Chairman Garton stated that the City has $200,000 budgeted in a 

fund for this purpose.  Dave Schaff recommended that the City purchase the property and then 

approach TCD about a demolition grant to take down the structures.  Chairman Garton stated 

that the fire department might also be able to use these buildings for a training exercise.  

Hadenfelt stated that in order to purchase the property, City Council would have to approve the 

purchase, a public hearing would be held, title insurance bought, and then item would be put on a 

Council agenda to finalize the purchase.  Committee Member Bennet moved and Chairman 

Garton seconded that the Committee recommend the purchase of this property, not to exceed 

$15,000. 

 Vote of Committee: “YEAS” Masterton, Bennet, Garton “NAYS” None Absent: None 

 

Chairman Garton began discussing the bylaws for the Scottsbluff Drain Committee.  He stated 

that no bylaws have been found from when the Drainage District dissolved.  Committee member 

Masterton stated that we need to get something in place, and that another meeting should be held 

to discuss these items in more depth.  He asked for an overview of the history of the Drain, and 

an outline of the long term plan for the Drain.  He stated that there are a lot of issues with the 

Drain, and the Committee needs to raise awareness and address these issues.  Chairman Garton 

stated that all these things should be explained to the City Council when they are approached 

about purchasing the property at 1308 E. 17
th

 Street.   

 

With no other business to consider, Bennet moved to adjourn the meeting and Chairman Garton 

seconded at 2:22 pm. 

 Vote of Committee: “YEAS” Masterton, Bennet, Garton “NAYS” None Absent: None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 59 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Public Inp1

Council to recognize the receipt of the Scott Wilber Award for 
Outstanding Facility Operations for the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 60 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 61 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Reports1

Council to approve the Equitable Sharing Agreement and 
Certification for the Police Department and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the agreement.

Staff Contact: Chief Kevin Spencer

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 62 / 178



Please wait... 
  
If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF 
viewer may not be able to display this type of document. 
  
You can upgrade to the latest version of Adobe Reader for Windows®, Mac, or Linux® by 
visiting  http://www.adobe.com/go/reader_download. 
  
For more assistance with Adobe Reader visit  http://www.adobe.com/go/acrreader. 
  
Windows is either a registered trademark or a trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Mac is a trademark 
of Apple Inc., registered in the United States and other countries. Linux is the registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other 
countries.

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 63 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Reports2

Council to authorize the Mayor to sign the Environmental Review 
Determination form for the Cirrus House projects.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 64 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 65 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 66 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 67 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 68 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Reports3

Council to consider the Consolidated Communications Center 
Inter-Local Agreement Amendment and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the amendment.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 69 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 70 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 71 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Reports4

Council discussion and instructions to staff regarding the request 
from Terrytown to purchase water from the City of Scottsbluff.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 72 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 73 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 74 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Reports5

Council to confirm the list of City Council candidates submitted by 
the deadline to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of 
Council Member Deibert and set the interview schedule.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 75 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 76 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 77 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 78 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 79 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 80 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 81 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 82 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 83 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 84 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 85 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 86 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 87 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 88 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 89 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 90 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 91 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 92 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 93 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 94 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 95 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 96 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Resolut.1

Council to consider approval of the contract with the Scottsbluff 
Police Officer’s Association and authorize the Mayor to execute the 
contract.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 97 / 178



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No. 
 

For Meeting of:   
 

AGENDA TITLE: Council to consider approval of the contract with the Scottsbluff Police 
Officer’s Association, and authorize the Mayor to execute the contract. 

  

SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION: Administration 
 
 

PRESENTATION BY:   Rick Kuckkahn 
 
 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: Contract between City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska and Scottsbluff 
Police Officer’s Association Inc. (draft attached) 
 
 

 

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution X Ordinance  Contract   Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)      
 

NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    
 
 

APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       
                                 City Manager 
  
 
 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 98 / 178



 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C O N T R A C T 

 

between 

 

CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA 

 

and 

 

SCOTTSBLUFF POLICE OFFICER'S ASSOCIATION 

INC. 

 

 

Effective 

 

October 1, 2009 - September 30, 2010  

October 1, 2013- September 30, 2016 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 99 / 178



 

 2 

TITLE PAGE 

 

 

PREAMBLE  Page 4 

 

DEFINITIONS Article I Page 5 

 

UNION RECOGNITION Article II Page 5 

 

NON-DISCRIMINATION Article III Page 6 

 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS Article IV Page 6 

 

CHECK-OFF Article V Page 8 

 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE Article VI Page 9 

 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION Article VII Page 10 

 

BULLETIN BOARDS/ Article VIII Page 11 

BALLOT BOXES 

 

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS Article IX Page 12 

 

REDUCTIONS IN FORCE Article X Page 15 

 

COMMITTEES Article XI Page 16 

(Labor-Management & Safety) 

 

UNION BUSINESS Article XII Page 16 

 

SENIORITY Article XIII Page 17 

 

HOURS OF WORK Article XIV Page 17 

IN DUTY SHIFTS 

 

ATTENDANCE IN COURT, Article XV Page 18 

CONFERENCES, MEETINGS 

 

OVERTIME, COMPENSATORY TIME, 

 AND CALL BACK PAY Article XVI Page 19 

 

 

HOLIDAYS Article XVII Page 21 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 100 / 178



 

 3 

LEAVE PROVISIONS Article XVIII Page 21 

 Accrual of Sick Leave  Page 21 

 Use of Sick Leave  Page 21 22 

 Funeral Leave  Page 22 

 Job-Related Injuries  Page 22 

 Separation of Employment  Page 22 

 

VACATION LEAVE Article XIX Page 23 

 Accrual  Page 23 

 Vacation Split  Page 23 

 Request for Vacation Leave  Page 23 

 

UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT Article XX Page 24 

 

COLLEGE INCENTIVE PAY/ 

 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT Article XXI Page 25 

 

WAGES Article XXII Page 26 

 

HEALTH INSURANCE Article XXIII Page 27 

 

LIFE INSURANCE Article XXIV Page 27 

 

DISABILITY INSURANCE Article XXV Page 27 

 

NON-REGULAR AND Article XXVI Page 28 

OFF-DUTY EMPLOYMENT 

 

RESIDENCE Article XXVII Page 28 

 

PHYSICAL FITNESS Article XXVIII Page 28 29 

 

STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS Article XXIX  Page 30 31 

 

SAVINGS CLAUSE Article XXX Page 30 31 

 

CONTRACT LANGUAGE RE-OPENER Article XXXI Page 31 

 

TERMINATION OF Article XXXII Page 31 32 

AGREEMENT 

 

AUTHORIZATION FOR Exhibit "A" Page 32 33 

PAYROLL DEDUCTION(Dues) 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 101 / 178



 

 4 

PREAMBLE 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City has voluntarily endorsed the practices and procedures of collective 

bargaining as a fair and orderly way of conducting its relations with its employees insofar as such 

practices and procedures are appropriate to the functions and obligations of the City to retain the 

right effectively to operate in a responsible and efficient manner and are consonant with the 

paramount interests of the City and its citizens; 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of this contract to provide, where not otherwise mandated by 

statute, ordinance, or resolution for the salary structure, fringe benefits, and employment 

conditions of the employees covered by this contract to prevent interruptions of work and 

interference with the efficient operation of the City and to provide an orderly and prompt method 

of handling and processing grievances; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree with each other as follows: 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 102 / 178



 

 5 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 

For the purpose of this Contract, the following words, terms and phrases shall be construed in 

accordance with the definitions assigned to them unless the context in which the same shall be 

used would otherwise necessarily require a different definition. 

 

1. Department shall mean the Police Department of' the City of Scottsbluff. 

 

2. Employee shall mean any Police Officer of the City which is included in the recognized 

bargaining unit; 

 

3. Civil Service Commission shall mean the duly appointed Civil Service Commission of 

the City; 

 

4. City Manager shall mean the duly appointed City Manager of the City; 

 

5. Personnel Rules and Regulations shall mean all provisions of the Ordinances of' the City 

regulating personnel and working conditions, the Personnel Manual and the 

Administrative Regulations of the City, the Rules and Regulations of the Civil Service 

Commission and any rules, regulations, instructions of the Police Department; 

 

6. City shall mean the City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska; 

 

7. Union shall mean Scottsbluff Police Officers' Association, Inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

UNION RECOGNITION 

 

The City recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all police 

officers holding positions or classifications subordinate to the Police Chief and immediate 

assistant(s) holding authority subordinate only to the Chief. 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 103 / 178



 

 6 

ARTICLE III 

NON-DESCRIMINATION 

 

 

SECTION 1 The parties hereby agree not to discriminate against any employees on the basis of 

race, color creed, sex, religious or political affiliations, national origin, age, marital 

status, or Union or non-union membership. 

 

SECTION 2 The parties hereby agree that no officers, agents, representatives, members or anyone 

connected with either party shall in any manner intimidate, coerce, restrain, or 

interfere with the rights of employees to form, join, or assist labor organizations or to 

refrain from any of these activities, including the right of employees to withdraw, 

revoke, or cancel Union membership. 

 

SECTION 3 The Union recognizes its responsibility as the exclusive bargaining agent and agrees 

to represent all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination, interference, 

restraint, or coercion. The City recognizes the Union right to reimbursement from 

nonunion bargaining unit employees for the reasonable cost of representation in each 

individual case. 

 

SECTION 4 The Union shall share equally with the City the responsibility for applying this 

Article to the Contract. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 

Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to restrict, limit or impair the rights, powers, and 

authority of the City under the laws of the State of Nebraska and ordinances of the City. 

 

The City shall not be deemed to have agreed to any restrictions upon the manner of exercising such 

powers and duties other than those clearly specified in this Contract. 

 

The reserved rights, powers, and authority of the City include, but are not limited to the following: 

 

1. The rights to determine, effectuate, and implement the objectives and goals of the 

City; 

 

2. The rights to manage and supervise all operations and functions of the City; 

 

3. The right to establish,  allocate, schedule, assign, modify, change and discontinue 

City operations, work shifts, and working hours, including overtime hours; 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 104 / 178



 

 7 

4. The right to establish, modify, change, and discontinue work standards; 

 

5. The right to hire, examine, classify, promote, train, transfer, assign, and retain 

employees; suspend, demote, discharge, or take other disciplinary action against 

employees for just cause; and to relieve employees from duties due to lack of work 

or reduction of funds; 

 

6. The right to increase, reduce, change, modify, and alter the composition and size of 

the work force; 

 

7. The right to determine, establish, change, modify, and implement policies for the 

selection, training, and promotion of employees; 

 

8. The rights to create, establish, change, modify, and discontinue any City function, 

operation and department. 

 

9. The right to establish, implement, modify, and change financial policies, accounting 

procedures, prices of goods or services, public relations, and procedures and policies 

for the safety, health, and protection of City property and personnel; 

 

10. The right to adopt, modify, change, enforce, or discontinue any existing rules, 

regulations, procedures and policies which are not in direct conflict with any 

provision of this Contact; 

 

11. The right to determine and enforce employee's quality and quantity standards; 

 

12. The right to classify jobs and to allocate individual employees to appropriate 

classifications based upon duty assignments. The City will not abolish or change any 

bargaining unit classifications for the purpose of depriving the bargaining unit 

employees of their benefits under this Contract. 

 

13. The right to establish reasonable work rules. 

 

14. If it is determined that there is a conflict between the Personnel Rules and 

Regulations or Administrative Regulations and the provisions of this Contact, the 

Contract will govern until changes incorporated in the Personnel Rules and 

Regulations are specifically addressed in the Contract. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 105 / 178



 

 8 

ARTICLE V 

CHECK-OFF 

 

SECTION 1 The City shall deduct regular Union dues from the pay of each employee covered by 

this contract, proved that at the time of such deduction there is in possession of the 

City a current unrevoked written assignment, executed by the employee, in the form 

and according to the terms of the authorization form, attached hereto, marked 

Appendix “A”, and made a part hereof.  Such authorization may be revoked by the 

employee at any time by giving written notice thereof to the City. 

 

SECTION 2 Previously signed and unrevoked written authorizations shall continue to be effective 

as to employees reinstated following lay-off, leave of absence, or suspension not 

exceeding sixty (60) days. Previous authorizations of other employees rehired or 

reinstated shall not be considered to be effective. 

 

SECTION 3 Such authorization deductions shall be made from each bi-weekly pay period and 

will within ten (10) days be remitted to the duly designated Union official. The 

Union official unless otherwise agreed shall be the treasurer. 

 

SECTION 4 Such deductions shall be limited to 1/26th 1/24
th

 of the annual Union dues, and shall 

not include dues for prior pay periods or any portion thereof. 

 

SECTION 5 If the city receives an employee revocation of authorization on or before the eighth 

day of the payroll period, no deductions will be made from that payroll period or 

subsequent payroll periods. If such revocation is received after the eighth day of the 

first payroll period, a deduction will be made from such payroll but shall not be made 

from subsequent payroll periods. 

 

SECTION 6 At the time of execution of this Contract, the Union shall advise the City in writing 

of the exact amount of regular annual Union dues, which shall be divided into 26 24 

equal payments. If, subsequently, the Union requests the City to deduct additional 

annual Union dues, such request shall be effective only upon written assurance by the 

Union to the City that amounts are regular Union dues duly approved in accordance 

with the Union's ByLaws. 

 

SECTION 7 The City agrees to provide this service without charge to the Union. 

 

SECTION 8 The City Shall not be liable for the remittance payment of any sums other than those 

constituting actual deductions made; and if for any reason it fails to make a deduction 

for any employee as above provided, it shall make that deduction from the next pay 

period in which Union dues are normally deducted after written notification to the 

City of the error. If the City makes an overpayment to the Union, the City will deduct 

that amount from the next remittance to the Union. The Union agrees to indemnify 

and hold the City harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders or judgments 

brought or issued against the City as a result of any action taken or not taken by the 

City under the provisions of the Article. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 106 / 178



 

 9 

ARTICLE VI 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 

An alleged grievance arising from an employee shall be handled in the following manner: 

 

A grievance for the purpose of this Contract refers to the question of the interpretation, 

application, and meaning of the terms of the labor agreement between the City and the 

Union. 

 

Employees shall raise and thoroughly discuss any matters on disagreement with their 

immediate supervisor in order to informally resolve as many matters as possible. 

 

In reducing a grievance to writing, the following information must be stated with reasonable 

clearness: 

 

1. The exact nature of the grievance; 

2. The act or acts of commission or omission; 

 3. The time and place of the act of commission or omission; 

 4. The identity of the party or parties who claim to be aggrieved; 

5.       The provisions of the contract that are alleged to have been violated; 

6.       The remedy which is sought. 

 

In the event that a satisfactory settlement is not or cannot be reached after the matter has been 

informally raised with the immediate supervisor, the following procedure shall be used in the 

submission of a grievance:  

 

 

Step 1 Any employee who believes that he/she has a justifiable request or grievance shall discuss 

the request or complaint within five (5) calendar days with the Police Chief, with or 

without the Union representative being present, as the employee may elect, in an attempt to 

settle same.  However, if a grievance or request has not been satisfactorily resolved in step 

one, it must be presented in writing and processed in step two, if the Union representative 

determines that it constitutes a meritorious grievance.  A grievance to be considered 

beyond step one must be filed in writing with the Police Chief. 

 

Step 2 If the grievance is not settled to the satisfaction of the employee, he/she and/or the 

designated representative shall present it to the Police Chief in writing within seven (7) 

calendar days of the receipt of the decision of the Police Chief in step one. The Police 

Chief shall consider the grievance and notify the employee in writing within seven (7) 

calendar days of the receipt of the grievance. 

 

Step 3 If the grievance is not settled to the satisfaction of the employee, he/she and/or the 

designated representative shall present it in writing to the City Manager or designated 

representative within five (5) calendar days after the decision of the Police Chief. The City 

Manager shall notify the employee of the decision made and of any action taken within ten 

(10) calendar days of the receipt of the grievance. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 107 / 178



 

 10 

 

Step 4 If the grievance is not settled by the City Manger to the satisfaction of the employee, the 

employee may seek redress from the Civil Service Commission or the courts as provided 

by law. 

 

General All grievances shall be presented by the employee in person. The employee shall not be 

paid for any time used to present a grievance. An employee must obtain the permission of 

the immediate supervisor before leaving the job to present a grievance. None of the above 

precludes the possibility of meetings at any step of the grievance procedure among the 

parties involved to discuss the issues and to attempt to settle them at that step. 

 

Nothing in the foregoing provisions shall be construed to apply to the extent, if any, that such 

provisions may become in conflict with a duly enacted statute of the state or a decision of the court 

of competent jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

 

SECTION 1 Disciplinary Action Cause: Good cause for disciplinary action against any 

employee shall include any cause so specified in the Personnel Rules and 

Regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION 2 Disciplinary Action: It is agreed by the parties that all the applicable provisions of 

the Personnel Rules and Regulations of the City are hereby made part of this contract 

and by this reference made part hereof. 

 

SECTION 3 Disciplinary Action Reprimand: The Police Chief or designated representative may 

reprimand any employee for cause. Such reprimand may be oral or written. 

 

SECTION 4 Written Reprimand: If such reprimand is in writing, it shall be addressed and 

presented to the employee who will initial a copy which shall then be included in the 

employee's personnel file. The employee may submit an explanation or rebuttal. 

 

SECTION 5 Removal of Letter: Any letter of reprimand issued to an employee may be removed 

from the employee's personnel file and presented to the employee two (2) years after 

the inclusion of such letter in the file, provided the employee has not received any 

additional letter or letters of reprimand during the two-year period of time. The 

employee shall request in writing that letters may be removed and if the request is 

approved by the Police Chief, action will be initiated which will remove the letter(s) 

from the personnel record. If the request is not approved, the Police Chief shall state 

the reasons why in writing. 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 108 / 178



 

 11 

SECTION 6 Response to Questions: Employees submitting written questions on policy matters 

will receive responses or acknowledgments of such inquiries within a reasonable 

time. If the response cannot be provided within ten (10) working days of the receipt 

of the inquiry, the acknowledgment will indicate the probable date for a complete 

response to the inquiry. 

 

SECTION 7 Any Union member that willfully or recklessly damages or destroys City property 

during the course of duty, and is found to be at fault, shall reimburse the City for the 

amount that is not covered by the City's insurance policy, not to exceed the 

deductible or $250. For purposes of this Article, the determination of fault, or cost, 

shall be made by a committee composed of one Union representative and one City 

representative. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

BULLETIN BOARDS AND BALLOT BOXES 

 

 

SECTION 1 The City shall permit the Union to provide one bulletin board at a location 

designated by the Police Chief, for the posting of Union meetings and elections, 

reports of Union committees, and other notices or announcements that would be of 

benefit or interest to each employee. City computers and equipment (e-mail, 

telephone, etc.) may be used to notify members of meeting dates and times. No other 

Union activity shall be allowed on City equipment. All posted notices shall be on 

Union stationery and signed by an officer of the Union. 

 

SECTION 2 Posted notices shall not contain anything political, discriminatory, or anything 

reflecting adversely upon the City or any of its employees. Any Union authorized 

violation of this Article shall entitle the City to cancel immediately the provisions of 

the Article and prohibit the Union further use of the bulletin board. 

 

SECTION 3 The bulletin board shall be for the exclusive use of the Union. 

 

SECTION 4 The City will permit the Union to use one ballot box provided by the Union, at an 

assembly area designated by the Police Chief, for use in Union elections. No 

employee shall participate in any Union elections, in any manner, during his/her tour 

of duty. 

 

SECTION 5 The City will permit the distribution, in each employee's designated message box, of 

reports of Union committees and other notices or announcements of benefit or 

interest to the employees. 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 109 / 178



 

 12 

ARTICLE IX 

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

 

 

SECTION 1 The security of the City of Scottsbluff, its citizens, plus the integrity and reputation 

of the Department, depends to a great extent, on the manner in which personnel of 

the Department perform their varied and difficult duties. The performance of such 

duties involves each employee in all manner of contacts and relationships with the 

public. 

 

A. Out of such contacts and relationships may arise questions concerning the 

actions of each employee of the department. Such questions require prompt 

investigation by superior officers. The officer shall be timely notified by 

appropriate Police Department personnel of the complaint, unless to do so 

might jeopardize the investigation of a complaint, and that determination 

shall be made by the Police Chief 

 

B. To ensure that such investigations are conducted in a manner conducive to 

good order and discipline, meanwhile observing and protecting the individual 

rights of each employee of the Department, the following rules are hereby 

established. 

 

 

SECTION 2 The interview of any employee shall be conducted at a reasonable hour after said 

employee has been given reasonable notice as to the incident involved and the time 

the interview is to be conducted. Said interview shall be conducted when the 

employee is on duty or between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., unless the urgency of the 

investigation dictates otherwise. If such interview occurs during off-duty time of the 

employee being interviewed, the employee shall be compensated for off-duty time in 

accordance with the overtime procedures of this contract. 

 

A. The interview shall take place at a location designated by the investigating 

officer, preferably at the Department. 

 

B. Each employee interviewed shall be informed of the name and rank of all 

persons present. Should an employee be directed to leave his/her post during 

the investigation, the shift commander shall be notified immediately. 

 

C. No complaint against an employee, alleging brutality in the execution of 

his/her duties, shall be investigated unless the complaint is in written form. 

 

D. Each employee being interviewed shall be informed verbally of the nature of 

the investigation, name and address of all complaining parties, before the 

interview commences. The employee shall be informed of his/her right to 

make notes. 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 110 / 178



 

 13 

E. The interview session shall be for a reasonable period of time, depending 

upon the seriousness of the investigation. Unless agreement is reached to 

continue a period of two hours shall be the maximum time allowed for any 

one session of the interview. 

 

F. Reasonable rest periods shall be allowed within the two (2) hour period. 

Time shall be provided for personal necessities, meals, telephone calls, etc., 

as are reasonably necessary. 

 

G. Each employee being interviewed shall not be subject to any offensive or 

abusive language, nor threatened with dismissal or other disciplinary action. 

Nothing herein is to be construed as to prohibit the interviewing officer from 

informing the employee that his/her conduct can be the subject of 

disciplinary action should he/she refuse to obey a lawful order of the ranking 

officer. No promise or reward shall be made as an inducement to answering 

any question. Each employee being interviewed shall be asked questions by 

and through no more than two investigators. The employee shall not be 

required by the Department to submit to interviews by the press or news 

media without his/her expressed consent, nor shall his/her home address, 

phone number or photograph be given to the press or news media without 

his/her consent. 

 

H. Under Arrest: When the employee being interviewed is under arrest, or is 

likely to be placed under arrest as a result of the interview, he/she shall be 

informed of Miranda Rights prior to the commencement of the interview. 

 

At the request of the employee under arrest or the employee who has been 

advised he or she is likely to be placed under arrest, and prior to any 

interview, the employee shall have the right to be represented by counsel of 

his/her choice who may be present at all times during such interview. The 

attorney shall not participate in the interview except to counsel the 

employee. The employee may request a postponement of the initial interview 

to contact any attorney of his/her, choosing. The interview may not be 

postponed more than 24 hours, with allowances being made for weekends 

and holidays. 

 

I. Violation of Department/City Rules: When an employee being interviewed 

in a non-criminal matter for violation of departmental rules, regulations, or 

orders, the employee will not be advised of Miranda Rights, but will be 

allowed the presence of legal counsel during the interview. The interview 

may be postponed for not more than 24 hours (together with an immediately 

following weekend or holiday) for the employee to obtain the services of 

legal counsel, if desired.  The attorney shall not participate in the interview 

except to counsel the employee. The employee shall answer truthfully all 

questions concerning the investigation posed by the interviewing officer. 

When the employee refuses to answer such questions, he/she will be 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 111 / 178



 

 14 

informed that refusal to answer can become the subject for disciplinary 

action. 

   

J. Non-criminal vs. Criminal conduct: When the employee is being 

interviewed in a non-criminal matter and there is likelihood that the 

interview may reveal criminal conduct on the part of the employee, the 

employee shall be advised of constitutional rights prior to the 

commencement of any interview. The employee shall be advised that if 

he/she does not waive these rights, the results of the interview cannot and 

will not be used against him/her in a criminal court of law. However, the 

employee will be required to answer all questions to assist in the 

administrative process. When the employee is interviewed and does waive 

rights, he/she shall be informed that the results of the interview can be used 

by the department in both an administrative and criminal action, if the 

accusations are proven. 

 

K. Tape recording: No tape recording will be made of the interview without 

prior advisement. There will be no "off-the-record" questions during a 

recorded interview. 

 

 

SECTION 3 Polygraph Non-criminal:  No employee of this Department shall be compelled to 

submit to a polygraph examination on a complaint without corroborating evidence in 

a Non-criminal matter, unless the complaining party is requested and submits to a 

polygraph examination beforehand. Should the complainant refuse or fail the 

examination, the employee would not be required to take such a test. If the 

complaining party passes the examination showing the truth in the complaint, or if 

there is sufficient corroborating evidence, the Police Chief may order the employee 

to submit to the examination. Failure to comply can become the basis for termination 

for insubordination. 

 

A. Polygraph (Criminal): In criminal matters under investigation, each 

employee shall be advised of his/her right to accept or reject the polygraph 

examination.  Should the employee elect to refuse the polygraph, he/she may 

be ordered to take the examination by the Police Chief as an aid in the 

administrative investigation. Failure to submit may be the cause for 

disciplinary action. Each employee will be informed that the refusal to submit 

to the examination cannot and will not be used against him/her in a criminal 

court of law. Should the employee waive his/her rights and elect to take the 

polygraph examination, any information derived from the examination may 

be used by the department in both administrative and criminal actions. 

   

B. In Criminal matters when an employee refuses to submit to a polygraph 

examination after being ordered to do so by the Police Chief, disciplinary 

action may be suspended, unless the employee is under arrest, until the final 

court disposition of the matter, or he/she may be terminated for 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 112 / 178



 

 15 

insubordination. The disposition of the disciplinary action against the 

employee, if any, shall rest with the City manager upon recommendation of 

Police Chief. 

 

C. Each employee may, at any time, request a polygraph examination. 

 

 

SECTION 4 Each employee shall read and be allowed to sign and date any document having 

reference to the results and/or disposition of an investigation, prior to its being 

placed in the employee's personnel file. 

 

SECTION 5 Each disciplined employee has the right of appeal available to employees as outlined 

in the Contract. 

 

SECTION 6 Nothing contained herein shall preclude or prohibit any employee from pursuing 

civil litigation for false and/or malicious complaints. 

 

SECTION 7 In the event that any section, sub-section, or other portion of this Article should be 

found unconstitutional, illegal, or otherwise invalid, the remainder of the Article 

shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE  X 

REDUCTIONS IN FORCE 

 

 

The Civil Service Commission will make recommendations concerning possible changes in the 

reduction in force policy to the City Manager. The City Manager will consider such 

recommendations, but shall not be bound by them in establishing changes.  Prior to the adoption of 

the changes, the City Manager and the City Council will, after giving reasonable notice to every 

police officer, conduct a public hearing. The City Manager will, in adopting any changes, consider 

factors including but not limited to the following primary factors. 

 

A. Seniority; 

B. The multiple job skills recently or currently being performed by the employee; 

C. The knowledge, skills, and abilities of the employee;  

D. The performance appraisal of the employee including any recent or pending 

disciplinary actions involving the employee;  

E. The employment policies and staffing needs of the department together with 

contracts, ordinances, and statues related thereto;  

F. Required federal, state, or local certifications or licenses. 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 113 / 178



 

 16 

ARTICLE XI 

COMMITTEES 

 

LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Representatives of the Union and City, to include the Human Resources Director, Chief of Police 

and City Manager will meet periodically over the course of each year to discuss items of interest to 

both parties in an effort to benefit the operation and environment of the organization through joint 

study and planning. Either party may initiate a meeting at any time during the course of the year. 

 

SAFETY: 

 

One member of the bargaining unit shall serve as a representative on the Safety and Wellness 

Committee as established by the City of Scottsbluff Personnel Manual. The representative shall be 

appointed by the City Manager upon recommendation by the Police Chief from names furnished by 

the Union President. The Safety and Wellness Committee meets quarterly, as a minimum, to discuss 

safety problems and tour a City department. 

 

In addition to serving on the Safety Committee, Officers may volunteer to train other City 

departments in their areas of expertise. Such training shall occur only during the Officer’s normal 

schedule or appropriately compensated for overtime. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

UNION BUSINESS 

 

SECTION 1 Union officials who are members of the bargaining committee, not to exceed four (4) 

in number, shall be granted leave from duty without pay for time spent in conducting 

union business.  Provided, Union officials who are conducting union business will be 

eligible to draw pay for such time to the extent that members of the Union had 

contributed accrued time to a "bargaining pay pool" to be established jointly by the 

City and the Union.  Negotiation sessions shall be scheduled so as to minimize the 

impact on such “pool.”  

 

SECTION 2 Union officials, not exceeding two (2) in number shall be granted leave from duty 

without pay for the purpose of attending Union meetings, conventions, education 

conferences or conducting Union business. Such leave shall be contingent upon a 

written request by the Union and approval by the Police Chief no less than one week 

in advance of the requested leave dates, provided that the leave from duty without 

pay shall not exceed forty (40) hours per person annually. 

 

SECTION 3 The City shall allow the Union to make use of copy reproduction devices available to 

the City. The Union shall reimburse the City for reproduction costs at a rate of $100 

per contract year. The Union shall be allowed to use City equipment to e-mail notice 

of meetings to members. No other Union business shall be conducted using City 

equipment.  

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 114 / 178



 

 17 

ARTICLE XIII 

SENIORITY 

 

SECTION 1 Seniority shall be based on continuous length of service in a classification without a 

break or interruption; provided that absence on authorized leave without pay or 

lay-off for thirty (30) calendar days or less, shall constitute a break or interruption of 

service within the meaning of this Article; provided, further that in the case of an 

absence on authorized leave without pay, the period of such absence shall be 

excluded in computing accumulated seniority. The Police Chief may waive the 

provisions of this section when the Chief determines it to be in the public interest. 

 

SECTION 2  Seniority shall commence from the date an employee enters a classification. 

 

SECTION 3 A list of employees arranged in order of seniority by classification shall be 

maintained and made available for examination by each employee, provided that the 

seniority list be revised and updated at the end of each fiscal year, a copy of the same 

shall be transmitted to the Union representative. The Union will have the list posted 

on its bulletin board within 24 hours of receiving the list. The list shall be deemed 

correct if no grievance is filed within five (5) days of delivery of the list to the Union 

representative. 

 

SECTION 4 Where two or more employees in the same classifications were appointed on the 

same date, their seniority standing shall be determined in order of their rank on the 

eligible list from which their appointments were made. 

 

SECTION 5 Seniority within a classification is the determining factor under Police Department 

Policy for taking of vacation leave and a factor in filling shift assignments. This 

consideration of employment is hereby made part of this Contract with the Police 

Chief having the discretion in the public interest, to make adjustments in making 

assignments and assigning vacation time. 

 

 

ARTICLE XIV 

HOURS OF WORK IN DUTY SHIFTS 

 

SECTION 1 Eight-hour shift: Eight hours shall constitute a day’s work and five consecutive 

calendar days shall constitute a week’s work. Two work weeks shall constitute an 

80-hour work period. Each employee shall be entitled to two consecutive days off 

each week unless in conflict with shift or other assignment changes or as specified in 

Section 4 of this article.  

 

SECTION 2 Ten-hour shift: Ten hours shall constitute a day’s work and four consecutive calendar 

days shall constitute a week’s work. Two work weeks shall constitute an 80-hour 

work period. Each employee shall be entitled to three consecutive days off each week 

unless in conflict with shift or other assignment changes or as specified in Section 4 

of this article.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 115 / 178



 

 18 

 

SECTION 3 Twelve-hour shift: Twelve hours shall constitute a day’s work and six twelve-hour 

work day’s with one eight hour work day, within two calendar weeks, shall constitute 

a work period. No employee shall be scheduled to work more than three consecutive 

twelve-hour days without having at least two consecutive days off unless in conflict 

with shift or other assignment changes or as specified in Section 4 of this article.  

 

SECTION 4 During an emergency or extenuating circumstances, as determined by the Police 

Chief, each employee’s shifts, hours, and duties may be established at the discretion 

of the Police Chief.  

 

 

ARTICLE XV 

ATTENDANCE IN COURT, CONFERENCES, AND OTHER MEETINGS 

 

SECTION 1  

A. This section applies to each employee required to attend during off duty hours, 

as a witness or in other capacity directly related to official duties, any of the 

following activities 

 

1. Any case pending in the County Court or District court; 

2. Any Grand Jury proceeding; 

3. Any conference with the City or County Attorney or their respective 

Assistants; 

4. Any proceeding of city, county, state or federal governments (including 

subdivision or agencies thereof). 

 

B. Each employee who is required to attend an activity described in paragraph A 

shall be entitled to: 

 

1. A minimum of two (2) hours at the rate of time and one-half (1½) for 

each appearance, or one and one-half (1½) times the actual number of 

hours in attendance, whichever is greater; However, 

2. If two or more appearances occur on the same date and location, each 

employee shall be entitled to time and one half (1½) compensation for the 

lesser of:  

a. The number of appearances multiplied by two hours, or, 

b. The number of hours comprised within the period commencing with 

the start of the first appearance and ending with the finish of the last 

appearance (less one hour for lunch if the appearances occur both in 

the fore and afternoon). 

 3. Each employee who attends an activity described in paragraph A, on a 

previously scheduled vacation day, will be compensated for a minimum 

of eight (8) hours of straight time or time and one-half (1½) times the 

actual hours in attendance, whichever is greater. 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 116 / 178



 

 19 

C. Each employee shall contact the designated representative of the City Police 

Department no more than 8 hours prior to appearing for any of the activities 

described in paragraph A for notice regarding the scheduling or cancellation of 

the activity. 

 

1. If the activity has been canceled, the employee is not required to appear 

for the activity; 

2. If the employee is notified that the activity is still scheduled and appears 

for the activity, and is then notified that the activity has been canceled, the 

employee will be entitled to two (2) hours at the rate of double (2) time. 

3. In the situation where an employee has a regularly scheduled day off and 

has been scheduled for court, if the court or the Police Department fails to 

notify the employee of a known cancellation as evidenced by court record, 

by the end of the business day (4:30 p.m. prior to the scheduled date, the 

employee will be compensated for two (2) hours of double time. 

4. Employees required to attend a regular court appearance with less than 8 

hours advance notice will be entitled to two (2) hours at the rate of double 

(2) time. 

 

SECTION 2 When the employee is testifying in other litigation to which he/she is a party or 

witness and which does not involve duty as a police officer, the employee may use 

vacation leave or compensatory time off or be granted leave without pay for the 

length of such service. 

 

SECTION 3 Each employee who is called for witness or jury duty shall present to his/her 

supervisor the original summons subpoena form the court. 

 

SECTION 4 Fees received for jury service or as a witness in a federal, state or county court shall 

be deposited with the city clerk upon the employee's receipt thereof, provided the 

requirement shall not apply to fees received by employees when they are not on duty 

with the City. No employee shall receive witness fees paid from the City's funds. 

 

 

ARTICLE XVI 

OVERTIME, COMPENSATORY TIME, AND CALL BACK PAY 

 

SECTION 1 Overtime pay: Work performed by employees in excess of eighty (80) hours per 

fourteen (14) day work period shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half 

(1½) times the number of hours worked in excess of eighty (80) hours per work 

period. For the purposes of this Article, work performed excludes funeral leave and 

excused absence without pay.  Sick leave will no longer reduce overtime earned. 

 

SECTION 2 If an employee is called to duty during off-duty time and such time does not coincide 

with scheduled tour of duty, such employee shall be paid for a minimum of two (2) 

hours at the rate of time and one half (1½), or one and one half times the actual 

number of hours worked, whichever is greater. However, if the call back time is due 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 117 / 178



 

 20 

to a telephone conference only, and the transaction can be completed from the 

officer's point of origin, the officer shall be paid for a minimum of one hour at the 

rate of time and one-half, or one and one-half times the actual number of hours 

worked, whichever is greater. 

 

SECTION 3 In calculating overtime pay, the following rule shall apply: If any employee works 

seven (7) minutes or less of overtime, the employee shall not receive any 

compensation for overtime.  If an employee works more than seven (7) minutes and 

less than twenty-three (23) minutes of overtime, the employee shall be compensated 

for one-quarter hour overtime.  If the employee works more than twenty-two (22) and 

less than thirty-eight (38) minutes of overtime, the employee shall be compensated 

for one-half hour overtime.  If the employee works more than thirty-seven (37) 

minutes and less than fifty-three (53) minutes of overtime, the employees shall be 

compensated for three-quarter hours of overtime.  If the employee works more than 

fifty-two (52) minutes and less than sixty (60) minutes, the employee shall be 

compensated for one (1) hour of overtime. 

 

SECTION 4 In lieu of payment for overtime hours worked, the City may elect to give 

compensatory time off. If this request is approved, one and one-half hours of 

compensatory time shall be credited for each overtime hour worked. Double-time 

eligible work is credited with double-comp time. 

 

SECTION 5 Compensatory time off shall be earned at the same rate as overtime pay, as described 

in this Article. Employees shall be allowed to carry up to one hundred-sixty eighty 

(160 180) hours of compensatory time during any fiscal year.  The City will establish 

the procedure for taking earned compensatory time off. Compensatory time shall be 

paid out to the employee at the City’s discretion and at the time of separation from 

employment. Seniority and non-discrimination shall apply as described in Articles III 

and XIII in the procedure for employees using compensatory time off. 

 

                       The City and the Union agree to the following compensatory cash payment rules.  The 

intent is that earned compensatory time is paid out at the rate of pay in which it was 

earned.   

 All compensatory balances will be paid in full as a cash payment with the 

signing of the 2013-2016 contract. 

 Compensatory time may be paid in cash per the employees request. Employee 

is required to submit a request for cash payment to HR one week prior to the 

payroll end date.   

 Pay out of all comp balances will occur prior to the end of each fiscal year.    

 

SECTION 6 Management will govern the granting of compensatory time off regardless of time 

period prior to request for said time off. Employees will not be required to find a 

replacement for his/her shift when the employee desires normal compensatory time 

off, provided, each employee notifies his/her supervisor at least one (1) week in 

advance for one (1) day off or at least two (2) weeks in advance for two (2) or more 

days off. 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 118 / 178



 

 21 

 

However, employees may be requested to locate a replacement for their position, 

should request for compensatory time off be made beyond the accepted limits for 

compensatory time, volunteering for special training. (e.g. pistol matches), special 

seminars or other functions which each employee has the option to attend or not 

attend. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XVII 

HOLIDAYS 

 

SECTION 1 The following and, in addition, any other days that may be designated by the City are 

paid holidays for employees:  

 

1. New Year's Day – January 1 

2. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – 3
rd

 Monday in January 

3. President's Day 3
rd

 Monday in February 

4. Memorial Day – last Monday of May 

5. Independence Day  - July 4
th

  

6. Labor Day – 1
st
 Monday of September 

7. Veteran's Day – November 11
th

  

8. Thanksgiving Day – 4
th

 Thursday of November 

9. Day after Thanksgiving – 4
th

 Friday of November 

10. Christmas Day – December 25
th

  

 

SECTION 2 Employees who work on any holiday shall be paid holiday bonus pay at one and one-

half times their regular rate of pay for actual hours worked; in addition to eight (8) 

hours of holiday pay. In lieu of holiday bonus pay, employees may elect to put the 

holiday bonus hours to compensatory time. 

. 

SECTION 3 Personal Leave Day: Each employee is entitled to one (8) eight-hour personal leave 

day per contract year, which shall be used in accordance with the procedures 

provided for use of accumulated time-off. Such personal leave day shall not be 

cumulative from year to year and there will be no compensation for an unused 

personal leave day. 

 

 

ARTICLE XVIII 

LEAVE PROVISIONS 

 

SECTION 1 Accrual of sick leave: Sick leave will accumulate at the rate of eight (8) hours of sick 

leave for each calendar month of service. Sick leave may be accumulated up to nine 

hundred sixty (960) hours.  

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 119 / 178



 

 22 

SECTION 2 Sick leave with pay must be earned, however, sick leave may be advanced if 

approved by the City Manager. Employees may utilize their allowance of sick leave 

when unable to perform their work duties by reason of personal illness, job related 

fatigue, bodily injury, pregnancy, disease or exposure to contagious diseases under 

circumstances in which the health of another employees or the public would be 

endangered by attendance on duty. Sick leave with pay may also be taken to keep 

medical or dental appointments. It may also be granted for illness in the immediate 

family that requires the employee's personal care and attendance, in conjunction and 

accordance with the Family Medical Leave Act. 

 

SECTION 3 The Police Chief or authorized representative may investigate any sick leave taken by 

each employee. False or fraudulent use of sick leave shall be cause for disciplinary 

action and may result in dismissal. 

 

SECTION 4 If any employee is absent for reasons that entitle him/her to use sick leave, each 

employee or a member of his/her household shall notify the supervisor on duty at 

least thirty (30) minutes prior to scheduled reporting time. If any employee fails to 

notify the supervisor, when it was reasonably possible to do so, no sick leave shall be 

approved. Immediately upon return to work, each employee shall submit a leave form 

to the supervisor. 

 

SECTION 5 Funeral Leave: Funeral leave not to exceed three (3) days may be granted for the 

death of a member of employee's immediate family (spouse, children, step-children, 

father, stepfather, mother, step-mother-, brothers, sisters, grandparents, 

grandchildren, mother-in-law, father-in-law, or persons living in the same 

household). The City Manager may allow the use of sick leave in addition to the 

funeral leave if circumstances of the travel distance from Scottsbluff warrants such 

increase. 

 

SECTION 6 Job related injuries: An employee who is unable to work as a result of a job-related 

injury or disease for which workers' compensation benefits are payable, that portion 

of the employee's regular salary which is not paid by the workers' compensation 

insurance carrier will be paid by the City. Workers' compensation reports must be 

filed and signed within 48-hours after the accident has taken place, and sent directly 

to the city clerk. This is the responsibility of the employee, unless otherwise 

incapacitated, in which case the responsibility would fall on the direct supervisor. 

 

SECTION 7 Separation of employment: Upon separation of employment (other than dismissal for 

cause or resignation in lieu of dismissal for cause) after fifteen (15) years of 

consecutive years or more of service, each employee will be compensated for fifty 

(50) percent of accumulated sick leave. 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 120 / 178



 

 23 

ARTICLE XIX 

VACATION LEAVE 

 

SECTION 1 Employees covered by this contract shall be subject to the vacation accrual system as 

per Section 5, 5.2a Vacation Accrual, of the City of Scottsbluff Personnel Manual, 

dated November 21, 2000. The annual amount of vacation earned initially is as 

follows: 

 

 Zero (0) to five (5) years of service: 

 full-time employees: 80 hours of vacation leave; 

 Six (6) to ten (10) years of service: 

 full-time employees: 112 hours of vacation leave; 

 Eleven (11) to fifteen (15) years of service: 

 full-time employees 136 hours of vacation leave; 

 Sixteen (16) or more years of service: 

full-time employees: 160 hours of vacation leave. 

  

 

SECTION 2 All vacation earned prior to the current pay period will be available for use up to the 

maximum allowed. The maximum amount of accumulated vacation will not exceed 

five (5) work weeks or 200 hours until the employee has achieved fifteen (15) years 

of service at which time the maximum increases to six (6) work weeks or 240 hours. 

*Maximum limits for employees covered by this contract will be enforced effective 

September 1, 1997. 

 

SECTION 3 Vacation split: Vacation leave is given so that employees can relax from everyday 

work routine to return refreshed to their work and not suffer any loss of pay. 

Employees are encouraged to take vacation periods of at least one (1) work week 

subject to schedule approval by the Police Chief, to facilitate planning and 

scheduling of vacation leave; provided, an employee may take eight (8) hours, more 

or less, of vacation leave with the approval of the Police Chief. 

 

SECTION 4 REQUEST FOR VACATION LEAVE: In order to be granted vacation leave, each 

employee must apply for same according to established Department procedures. The 

employee must submit a request to the Police Chief two weeks in advance. The 

Police Chief should submit a Personnel Action Report to the personnel director and 

the City Manager as a request for vacation leave at least two weeks prior to the 

effective date of the leave. 

 

The Police Chief can, for good cause, waive the notice of, at least two (2) weeks 

prior to the request for leave, relative to the request for use of eight (8) hours, more 

or less vacation leave. 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 121 / 178



 

 24 

ARTICLE XX 

UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT 

 

SECTION 1 All employees required to wear uniforms will have uniforms furnished by the City in 

sufficient supply so that each employee may at all times present a clean and neat 

appearance. Such uniforms shall not include socks or shoes which will be provided 

by the individuals. The City will provide a plan whereby overshoes will be furnished 

to each employee. These uniforms are City property and shall not be converted to 

personal use. 

 

SECTION 2 The City shall provide a uniform allowance of $58.25 per month, to be paid to non-

uniformed employees for the purpose of supplying civilian attire. The allowance will 

be paid to the non-uniformed officer on a calendar basis in December of each year, 

subject to a written agreement between the City and the employee being made to 

provide for a prorated refund to the City in the event that employee should terminate 

for any reason during the year in which the uniform allowance has been paid. 

 

SECTION 3 The City shall provide such police equipment as shall be required by the Department. 

 

SECTION 4 Regular replacement article shall be provided as necessary for reasonable wear or 

damage or loss of uniforms and equipment occurring while in the performance of 

duties. Old gear must be returned. 

 

SECTION 5 Repairs shall be provided by the City if the damage occurred in the line of duty. 

Alterations due to weight change are the responsibility of each employee. 

 

SECTION 6 The Police Chief may authorize repair or reimbursement for clothing of 

non-uniformed employees or of shoes of any employee when such clothing or shoes 

have been damaged while in the performance of duties. In addition, the Police Chief 

may authorize reimbursement for repairs or replacement of personal gear damaged 

while in the performance of duties, such as glasses, frames, lenses, watches, watch 

bands, flashlights, binoculars, which the officer customarily wears or uses either out 

of necessity or by choice while on duty. 

 

SECTION 7 The City will provide for professional dry cleaning and minor repair services for 

uniformed officers and an equivalent of personal clothing for non-uniformed 

officers. The professional dry cleaning firm will be of the City’s choice.  

 

SECTION 8 The City will provide one pair of leather gloves per officer. The gloves will be 

provided to assure proper safety and appearance standard are maintained. At least 

two Union members will meet with the Police Chief and jointly it will be determined 

the type of gloves to be purchased. 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 122 / 178



 

 25 

 

 

ARTICLE XXI 

COLLEGE INCENTIVE PAY/TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 

 

SECTION 1 In addition to his/her regular pay and any other compensation to which a college 

credit eligible member of the department as defined herein may otherwise be entitled, 

a college eligible employee of the department shall receive one-half percent of 

regular and overtime pay for each thirty (30) hours of college credit satisfactorily 

completed to up to ninety (90) hours of college credits satisfactorily completed, 

together with another one-half percent of regular pay upon attainment of a bachelor's 

degree, providing the conditions set forth in Section 3 to 5 inclusive, of this Article 

are met. 

 

SECTION 2 For the purpose of this Article, a college credit eligible member of the department 

shall include all police officers of the department. 

 

SECTION 3 All current college credit eligible members of the department shall be given credit for 

college hours earned in the past from an accredited college or university when 

sufficient proof of credits earned is supplied to the personnel officer. 

 

SECTION 4 All college credit eligible employees desiring to take such courses from and after the 

effective date of this contract must first obtain approval in advance from the Police 

Chief 

 

SECTION 5 Employees claiming compensation under this article must have a bachelors degree or 

all grades must be a least a "C" or better. 

 

SECTION 6 In any case not specifically covered by the provisions of this Article, the 

determination as to whether such courses qualifies for college credit will be 

determined in the sole discretion of the City Manager. 

 

SECTION 7 College incentive pay for each eligible employee will be provided beginning with the 

first pay period after the employee has provided the Personnel officer with proof of 

credits earned. 

 

SECTION 8 Employees are eligible for tuition reimbursement limited to $600 per fiscal year per 

officer and shall include books, tuition and fees. Reimbursement will be based on 

guidelines outlined in the City of Scottsbluff Personnel Manual. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 123 / 178



 

 26 

ARTICLE XXII 

WAGES 

 

All members of the bargaining unit as defined in Article 11 hereof, shall be paid according to the 

following pay schedule effective October 7, 2013. 

 

                                                    HOURLY PAY SCHEDULE 
                                                                  

Class Title       (6mo-1 year)                   

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Officer 17.35 18.20 19.09 20.03 21.01 22.03 23.11 24.26 

Sergeant 20.96 21.92 22.93 23.99 25.09 26.24 27.44 28.71 

                                                                  

Non-Regular Employment: Time and one-half 

 

At the end of probation, which is not less than six (6) months nor more than one (1) year after 

certification by the Nebraska Law Enforcement Training Center for police officers as provided by 

the Rules of the City's Civil Service Commission, and provided the probationary employee has 

demonstrated the capacity of fully performing the duties of the position fully satisfactorily as 

determined by the City Manager, each employee will be eligible for consideration of a raise to the 

next higher step of the position pay scale. 

 

Thereafter, the step increment date for each employee will normally be the anniversary of the last 

increase, providing each employee's previous service has been satisfactory in every respect as 

determined by the City Manager.  Certain circumstances such as a disciplinary action, extension of 

probation, extended absence from duty such as active military duty or leave without pay, or a 

promotion, may result in an employee taking longer than six years to go from Step 2 to Step 8. 

 

Field Training Officers:  

Field Training Officers shall receive an additional 3% of regular rate of pay, when they are actively 

training a new officer.  

 

Shift Supervisor: 

Officers acting as shift commander shall receive an additional 5% of regular rate of pay while 

serving as a shift supervisor.    

 

On Call Pay-Investigators:  

The On Call Investigator will receive 4 hours of straight pay for the week they are assigned On Call.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 124 / 178



 

 27 

ARTICLE XXIII 

HEALTH INSURANCE 

 

FOR THE TERM OCTOBER 1, 2013 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2013 

 

HEALTH AND DENTAL INSURANCE 

The City will provide a choice of four health insurance plans to members.  Participation in these 

plans shall be subject to policies and procedures as established in the City Personnel Manual and/or 

Administrative Regulations. Members are provided with information to assist in making their plan 

selection.   

 

The members of the SPOA shall pay the following rates for the balance of calendar year of 2013: 

 

Plan A $330 per month for single  $655 per month for family 

Plan B $68 per month for single  $236 per month for family 

Plan C $50 per month for single  $100 per month for family 

Plan D $  0 per month for single  $    0 per month for family 

 

For Plan D, the City will contribute to the employee’s Health Savings Account: $25 per month for 

single and $50 per month for family; subject to a minimum contribution by the employee to the 

employee’s Health Savings Account. 

 

The Dental insurance premium shall remain at $30 per month for family coverage and $15 for single 

dental coverage. 

 

 

Article XXXI of the SPOA’s contract with the City of Scottsbluff states that during the term of 

the contract,  negotiations may be re-opened  for individual, specifically defined issues, such as 

cost of living increases, salary comparisons/increases, and health and dental premiums.  

 

ARTICLE XXIV 

LIFE INSURANCE 

 

The City shall provide a $30,000 term life insurance policy for each employee. 

 

The City will provide a plan for optional purchase of additional life insurance coverage, the 

premium to be paid by each employee. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XXV 

DISABILITY INSURANCE 

 

The City shall provide long-term disability insurance for each employee. 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 125 / 178



 

 28 

 

ARTICLE XXVI 

NON-REGULAR AND OFF-DUTY EMPLOYMENT 

 

SECTION 1 Off-duty employment is employment by an employer other than the City of 

Scottsbluff or self-employment. Such employment is permitted to the extent 

provided in the City's "Personnel Rules and Regulations" and the Police 

Department's "Policies and Procedures." 

 

SECTION 2 Non-regular employment is: 

1. Law enforcement work performed as an employee of the City at times other 

than during regular working hours and other than court time and overtime for 

departmental purposes, and 

2. For which work the City is reimbursed by some other agency or individual. 

 

Such employment will usually consist of providing security services, traffic and crowd 

control, etc. for non-city sponsored events such as athletic events, recreational events, 

special programs or shows or other special events which may create a crowd control or 

security risk situation. 

 

SECTION 3 Non-regular employment will be arranged through the department according to 

procedures established by the Police Chief. 

 

SECTION 4 Employees working on a non-regular employment assignment will be paid as 

provided in Article XXII. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XXVII 

RESIDENCE 

 

All employees shall reside not to exceed fifteen (15) miles from the City limits but, regardless, not 

to exceed thirty (30) minutes response time to the Police Department from the time of notification 

by the department as determined by the Police Chief. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 126 / 178



 

 29 

ARTICLE XXVIII 

PHYSICAL FITNESS 

YMCA MEMBERSHIP 
 

Any officer who wishes to participate in the physical fitness program and a city-paid YMCA 

membership must agree to the following conditions: 

 

ENROLLMENT:   

Police Officers will be able to sign up for the YMCA membership program once a year, during the 

City’s open enrollment period, usually in December.  The YMCA membership would be for the 

next calendar year. New Officers hired after January 1 can enroll anytime during the calendar year. 

If the Officer chooses not to enroll in their first calendar year of employment, he/she shall wait until 

the next open enrollment to join.  

 

YMCA ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

Any officer participating in this program must provide documentation that he/she utilized the 

facilities at the YMCA at least 50 times within the calendar year. Documentation is accomplished 

by swiping the membership card and signing the  Police Department Log at the front desk.  

An officer must spend at least 15 minutes engaging in some form of exercise at the YMCA for it to 

be considered a workout that applies towards meeting the attendance requirement. 

 

The Officer will pay for his/her own monthly membership fee until such time as he/she has met the 

50 times. Upon receiving documentation from the YMCA that the Officer has attended 50 times, the 

CITY will reimburse the fees already paid by the officer and the CITY will begin paying the 

monthly membership.   However, if the CITY is paying for an Officer’s membership, and the 

Officer does not meet the required 50 times during the calendar year, the Officer will  have to pay 

their own membership for the next calendar year during which they go at least 50 times before the 

CITY will begin paying the membership fee again for the next calendar year.  The Officer will not 

be eligible for any further reimbursement from the City. 

 

If an Officer discontinues YMCA membership anytime within the calendar year, the Officer must 

wait for open enrollment to rejoin.  

 

Non-participation in the YMCA program will not allow the individual to be compensated 

monetarily or by any other means. 

 

HEALTH FAIR: 

All  Union members enrolled in the Physical Fitness Program shall participate in the City’s annual  

Health Fair. The Health Fair may include a blood draw to test sugars and cholesterol, blood 

pressure, height and weight. The CITY agrees to pay for the testing if the member met the 

attendance requirement in the prior calendar year and is a YMCA member at the time of the Health 

Fair. The CITY will pay for the testing for Officers who were hired and joined within the current 

calendar year but who have not yet met the attendance requirement.  

 

Officers shall not be required to attend the CITY’S Health Fair if on that day they are sick, on 

scheduled vacation, on an active call, or have a reasonable excuse for not attending. However, in 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 127 / 178



 

 30 

lieu of attending the CITY’S Health Fair, the Officer shall provide the CITY with verification that a 

similar screening from a qualified medical provider was conducted within the calendar year. 

Officer’s covered under the CITY’S health insurance plan have a wellness benefit that may cover 

the screening. No other CITY funds will be provided to pay for the individual screening.  

 

Non-participation in the YMCA program will not allow the individual to be compensated 

monetarily or by any other means. 

 

NEW RECRUITS: 

To be eligible for hire, an applicant for police officer must pass a physical agility test consisting of 

running 1.5 miles in 20 minutes or less, using the following method of scoring: 

 

15 minutes and under-  15    points 

15:00 to 15:30   13.5 points 

15:31 to 16:00   12   points 

16:01 to 16:30   10.5 points 

16:31 to 17:00      9   points 

17:01 to 17:30      7   points 

17:31 to 18:00      6   points 

18:01 to 18:30      4   points 

18:31 to 19:00      3   points 

19:01 to 19:30      1   points 

19:31 to 20:00  Passed, but zero points 

Over 20 minutes Failed fitness evaluation and not considered for employment 

 

 The SPOA agrees that they will assist the City in conducting this testing process.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 128 / 178



 

 31 

 

ARTICLE XXIX 

STRIKES AND LOCK-OUTS 

 

Neither the Union nor any officers, agents or employees will instigate, promote, sponsor, engage in 

or condone any strike, slowdown, concerted stoppage of work, or any other intentional interruption 

of operations of the Department by employees of the Department. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XXX 

SAVING CLAUSE 

 

If any provision of this Contract is subsequent declared by the proper legislative or judicial authority 

to be unlawful or unenforceable or not in accordance with applicable statutes or ordinances, all other 

provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Contract. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XXXI 

CONTRACT LANGUAGE RE-OPENER 

 

During the term of the contract, contract language may be modified if recommended by the Union 

and mutually agreed to by the City.  The contract may be re-opened for individual, specifically 

defined issues only, such as cost of living increases, salary comparisons/increases, and health and 

dental premiums.  This provision is not to be construed as a broad license to re-negotiate the 

contract in its entirety prior to the expiration of the contract. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 129 / 178



 

 32 

 

ARTICLE XXXII 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement shall be effective as of the 1st day of October, 200913 and shall remain in full force 

and in effect until the 30th day of September, 201016. It shall automatically renew from year to year 

thereafter unless either party shall notify the other in writing no later than 180 days prior to 

expiration that one party wishes to terminate or modify the Agreement. Response time from receipt 

of such notice to modify shall be no later than April 15. In which event, the Agreement shall 

terminate on its expiration date. However, by agreement of the parties, the terms and conditions of 

the Agreement may be continued following expiration. In the event of a request for termination or 

modification, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement are subject to negotiation and 

re-negotiation and new topics and subject matter may be brought up during the negotiations by 

either, party. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands this       day 

of __________________________, 2013. 

 

    SCOTTSBLUFF POLICE OFFICERS 

      ASSOCIATION, INC. 

 

      By______________________________ 

          President 

 

 

 

     CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF                   

 

       By___________________________ 

          Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

City Clerk of the City of Scottsbluff 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 130 / 178



 

 33 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION 

 

 

 

 

By: _________________________________________________________________________ 

                       (Please print last name, first name, middle initial) 

 

 

 

Classification: __________________________________ SSN: __________________________ 

 

 

 

 

TO THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF: 

 

Effective the _______________day of ___________________, 20___, I hereby request and 

authorize you to deduct from my earnings on each pay period of each month, a sufficient amount to 

provide for the regular payment of the current rate of monthly UNION dues as certified by the 

UNION.  The amount deducted shall be paid to the Treasurer of the Scottsbluff Police Officers 

Association, Inc.  This authorization shall remain effective unless terminated by me by written 

notice to the CITY. 

 

 

 

 

   Signature: ______________________________________________ 

  

   Address: _______________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Date:_____________________  City:__________________________________ State:______ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

            Union Representative 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 131 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Resolut.2

Council to consider the amended 2013-2014 pay resolution.

Staff Contact: Jana Bode, HR Director

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 132 / 178



Rev 3/1/99CClerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No. 
 

For Meeting of:   
 

AGENDA TITLE: Council to consider amended 2013-2014 pay resolution 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION: Administration 
 
 

PRESENTATION BY:   Rick Kuckkahn 
 
 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION: Pay Resolution -  increases the Police wages an additional 1.3% 
for fiscal year 2013-2014. (per Union Contract) 
*resolution attached 
 
 

 

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution X Ordinance  Contract   Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)      
 

NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    
 
 

APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       
                                 City Manager 
  
 
 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 133 / 178



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.   

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSBLUFF, NEBRASKA: 

 

1. That the following Pay Plan for officers and employees of the City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska employed in 

Classified Positions be approved November 18, 2013 and effective October 7, 2013. 

 

PAY SCHEDULE 

HOURLY RATES (Based on 40 hour work week) 

 

Grade A B C D E L1 L2 

        

        

2 8.40 8.82 9.26 9.73 10.21 10.72 11.26 

3 8.82 9.26 9.73 10.21 10.72 11.26 11.82 

4 9.26 9.73 10.21 10.72 11.26 11.82 12.41 

5 9.73 10.21 10.72 11.26 11.82 12.41 13.03 

6 10.21 10.72 11.26 11.82 12.41 13.03 13.68 

7 10.72 11.26 11.82 12.41 13.03 13.68 14.37 

8 11.26 11.82 12.41 13.03 13.68 14.37 15.09 

9 11.82 12.41 13.03 13.68 14.37 15.09 15.84 

10 12.41 13.03 13.68 14.37 15.09 15.84 16.63 

 11 13.03 13.68 14.37 15.09 15.84 16.63 17.47 

12 13.68 14.37 15.09 15.84 16.63 17.47 18.34 

13 14.37 15.09 15.84 16.63 17.47 18.34 19.25 

14 15.09 15.84 16.63 17.47 18.34 19.25 20.22 

15 15.84 16.63 17.47 18.34 19.25 20.22 21.23 

16 16.63 17.47 18.34 19.25 20.22 21.23 22.29 

17 17.47 18.34 19.25 20.22 21.23 22.29 23.40 

18 18.34 19.25 20.22 21.23 22.29 23.40 24.57 

           19    19.25               20.22               21.23               22.29               23.40              24.57          25.80 

           20              20.22               21.23               22.29               23.40               24.57              25.80          27.09 

 

 

BI-WEEKLY RATES 

 

17 1395.88 1465.67 1538.96 1615.90 1696.70 1781.53 1870.61 

18 1465.67 1538.96 1615.90 1696.70 1781.53 1870.61 1964.14 

19 1538.96 1615.90 1696.70 1781.53 1870.61 1964.14 2062.35 

20 1615.90 1696.70 1781.53 1870.61 1964.14 2062.35 2165.47 

21 1696.70 1781.53 1870.61 1964.14 2062.35 2165.47 2273.74 

22   1781.53 1870.61 1964.14 2062.35 2165.47 2273.74 2387.43 

23 1870.61 1964.14 2062.35 2165.47 2273.74 2387.43 2506.80 

24 1964.14 2062.35 2165.47 2273.74 2387.43 2506.80 2632.14 

25 2062.35 2165.47 2273.74 2387.43 2506.80   2632.14 2763.74 

26 2165.47 2273.74 2387.43 2506.80    2632.14 2763.74 2901.93 

27 2273.74 2387.43 2506.80    2632.14 2763.74 2901.93 3047.03 

28 2387.43 2506.80    2632.14 2763.74 2901.93 3047.03 3199.38 

29 2506.80     2632.14 2763.74 2901.93 3047.03 3199.38 3359.35 

           30           2632.14           2763.74            2901.93           3047.03           3199.38          3359.35      3527.32 

           31           2763.74           2901.93            3047.03          3199.38            3359.35          3527.32      3703.68 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 134 / 178



 

 

 

2.  That the following positions in the Classification Plan are assigned to the following Class Grades: 

 

HOURLY POSITIONS 

 

 

 Grade Class Titles 

 

  Grade Class Titles 

 3        Code Enforcement Assistant   14 Wastewater Plant Operator I 

 5 Assistant Pool Manager   14 Water System Operator I 

 7 Library Technician   14 Heavy Equipment Operator 

 7 Pool Manager   14 Solid Waste Equip. Operator 

 9 Building & Grounds Custodian   15 Crew leader 

 9 Clerical Technician   16 Maintenance Mechanic 

 10 Clerk Typist   16 Finance/HR Assistant 

 10 Customer Services Clerk   16 Fire Prevention Officer 

 10 Library Assistant   17 Wastewater Plant Operator II 

 11 Record Technician   17 Water System Operator II 

 11 Humane Officer   17 Construction-Locator Spec. 

 12 Accounts Payable Clerk   18 Cemetery Supervisor 

 12 Accounts Receivable Clerk   19 Stormwater Program Specialist 

 12 Admin. Records Technician   20 Code Administrator I  

 13 Administrative Assistant     

 13 Maintenance Worker     

 13 Motor Equipment Operator     

       

       

       

       

       

 

 

 

EXEMPT POSITIONS 

 

Professional, Administrative and Executive 

                  

        

 17 Recreation Supervisor   24 Development Serv. Director  

 18 Utilities Adm. Coordinator   24 City Clerk/Risk Manager 

 18 Librarian   24 Library Director 

 20 GIS Analyst   24 Public Safety/Em Mgmt Dir 

 22 Transportation Supervisor   25 IS Coordinator 

 22 Park Supervisor   26 Police Captain 

 22 Water System Supervisor   26 Director of Parks/Recreation 

 22 Wastewater Plant Supervisor   26 Assistant City Manager 

 22 Environmental Services Supervisor   27 Director of Human Resources 

  22  Code Administrator II   28 Director of Public Works 

 22 Planner   29 Fire Chief  

 23 Network Administrator   30 Police Chief 

 23 Planning Administrator   31 Director of Finance 

       

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 135 / 178



 

 

3.  That the following pay schedule for officers and employees in Unclassified Positions of the city is approved 

November 18, 2013 and effective October 7, 2013. 

 

Position Salary Minimum  Salary Maximum 

 

City Manager 

 

Established by City Council 

 

   

   

   

  

 

Seasonal and Part-time 

        Hourly Rates 

 

 

         

  Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 

School Crossing Guard  $7.40 $7.55 $7.70 $7.85 $8.00 $8.15 $8.30 

Library Page  $7.40 $7.55 $7.70 $7.85 $8.00 $8.15 $8.30 

Laborer  $8.00 $8.15 $8.30 $8.45 $8.60 $8.75 $8.90 

Field Mntc. Groundskeeper  $8.40 $8.55 $8.70 $8.85 $9.00 $9.15 $9.30 

         

         

         

         

Recreation Aide  $7.40 $7.55 $7.70 $7.85 $8.00 $8.15 $8.30 

         

         

Lifeguard   $8.35 $8.50 $8.65 $8.80 $8.95 $9.10 $9.25 

Head Lifeguard  $8.65 $8.80 $8.95 $9.10 $9.25 $9.40 $9.55 

         

 

 

NOTE: Pay step increase may be given after one year of service from hire date, at the discretion of the Department 

Head.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 136 / 178



 

 

4.  The Pay Schedule for the position of Firefighters and Fire Captains working a 56 hour week shall be the 

schedule approved in a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and City Council on November 18, 2013 and 

effective October 7, 2013. 

 

Class Title  Hourly Pay Schedule (56 hour week) 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Firefighter  12.28 12.88 13.50 14.16 14.85 15.57 16.32 17.11 

Fire Captain 15.92 16.69 17.49 18.33 19.21 20.13 21.10 22.11 

 

 

5.  That the Pay Schedule for the position of Patrol Officer and Police Sergeant shall be the Schedule approved in a 

resolution approved by the Mayor and City Council on November 18, 2013 to be effective October 7, 2013.  

 

Class Title     Hourly Pay Schedule 

  

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8  

Patrol Officer 17.35 18.20 19.09 20.03 21.01 22.03 23.11 24.26  

Police Sergeant 20.96 21.92 22.93 23.99 25.09 26.24 27.44 28.71 

 

 

          

          

 

6.  Resolution No.  13-09-06 and all other resolutions in conflict with this resolution are repealed. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 18
th

 day of November, 2013. 

 

  

 

_______________________________________ 

         Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 137 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Resolut.3

Council to consider an Ordinance dealing with a change in fees for 
proposed budgeted fees charged for water, wastewater, and 
environmental services (second reading).

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 138 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 139 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 140 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 141 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 142 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 143 / 178



Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 144 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Resolut.4

Council to approve the Region 22 Emergency Management Debris 
Management Program Plan and approve the Resolution.

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 145 / 178



Rev: 11/15/12 City Clerk 

A g e n d a   S t a t e m e n t 
 

Item No. 
 

For Meeting of:  November 18, 2013 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  Council to approve the Region 22 Emergency Management Debris 
Management Program Plan and approve the Resolution. 

 

SUBMITTED BY DEPARTMENT/ORGANIZATION:  Emergency Management 
 
 

PRESENTATION BY:   City Manager Rick Kuckkahn 
 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  
 
The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has identified the process of cleaning up 
disaster debris as the costliest and most time-consuming activity following an event.  For this 
reason, FEMA created a pilot program that increases its reimbursement to communities from 
75% of debris costs to 80%.  In the near future, all entities will be required to have debris 
management plans.  We are ahead of the curve by developing a Region 22 Emergency 
Management Debris Management Plan.  The entire Panhandle Region paid for the Debris 
Management Plans (Region 21 and 23 Emergency Management also has interrelated plans with 
Region 22) so that we can all work together if we have an event that requires debris 
management.  These plans were paid for by Homeland Security grant funding. 
 
 

BOARD/COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   

  
EXHIBITS  

Resolution  Ordinance  Contract   Minutes   Plan/Map  
 
Other (specify)      
 

 

NOTIFICATION LIST:  Yes    No    Further Instructions    
Please list names and addresses required for notification. 
 
 

APPROVAL FOR SUBMITTAL:       
                                 City Manager 
 
  
 
 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 146 / 178



 
 

          October 31, 2013 

 

Dear County, City or Village Clerk: 

 

We have completed the Region 22 Debris Management Program Plan, composed of a “Master 

Plan” and an “Action Plan”.  I have attached the Debris Management Plan to this email. 

 

The benefit to our communities for having a Debris Management Program Plan is that the “Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) created a pilot program that increases its reimbursement 

to communities from 75% of debris cleanup cost to 80%.  To qualify for the program, local 

governments must meet a prerequisite of having a FEMA-approved debris management plan in 

place.”   Read more about his on Page 1 of the Master Plan, if you have additional questions.  

 

The next step is for each city and village in the Region 22 Inter-local Agreement to develop a 

resolution adopting the Debris Management Program Plan at the County level.  To achieve this 

goal, we must have each City and Village in Scotts Bluff County who has signed the Region 22 

Inter-local Agreement to adopt the Debris Management Program Plan through a resolution.  These 

signed resolutions will be attached to the Debris Management Program Plan and presented to the 

Scotts Bluff County Commissioners for adoption by resolution.   

 

The Debris Management Program Plan will also be presented to the Banner County 

Commissioners for adoption by resolution.   

 

When Scotts Bluff and Banner counties adopt the Debris Management Program Plan by resolution, 

I will send the Debris Management Program Plan and the two adopted resolutions to the Nebraska 

Emergency Management Agency for final adoption and publishing of the Plan. 

 

Attached is a sample resolution you might consider to use for adoption of the Debris Management 

Plan by resolution.   

 

Any entity desiring me to make a presentation about the Debris Management Program Plan at your 

council or commissioner meeting should contact me so we can make the necessary arrangements.  

It is not necessary that I make a personal appearance, but I will be happy to oblige you if you feel 

it is necessary.  Thanks for your time and consideration. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 
 

Jerry Bretthauer, Director 

Region 22 Emergency Management 

Region 22 Emergency Management Agency 

1801 Avenue B 

Scottsbluff, Nebraska 69361 

__________________________________________ 

Phone:  308-436-6689     FAX:  308-632-2916 

Cell: 308-641-0016     Email:  jbrett@scottsbluff.org      

Jerry Bretthauer, Director    

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 147 / 178



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.___________ 
 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the members of the Region 22 Emergency Management Inter-local 

Agreement agree to utilize the Region 22 Emergency Management Debris Management 

Program Plan, composed of a Master Plan and an Action Plan, during and following a 

disaster in Scotts Bluff County or Banner County, and  

 

 BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that Scotts Bluff County is hereby directed 

and authorized to abide by the Region 22 Emergency Management Debris Management 

Program Plan, composed of a Master Plan and an Action Plan, during and following a 

disaster in Scotts Bluff County or Banner County. 

 

 Approved this ___ day of November, 2013. 

 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

                Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

                   City Clerk 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 148 / 178



 

NNeebbrraasskkaa  PPllaannnniinngg  EExxeerrcciissee  aanndd  TTrraaiinniinngg  

RReeggiioonn  2222  

  

((SSccoottttss  BBlluuffff  aanndd  BBaannnneerr  CCoouunnttiieess)) 

DDeebbrriiss  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm  

AAccttiioonn  PPllaann  
 

 

Information contained in this Debris Management Program is the property of Nebraska Planning Exercise 
and Training Region 22 and is deemed confidential and proprietary.  It is not to be disclosed to any third 
party or replicated without the express written consent of the Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training 
Region 22 Debris Management Team and Region 22 EM . 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Initial release prepared by: 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 149 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page i  
 

Forward 

This Action Plan is not intended to limit or restrict initiative, good judgment, or independent action required to provide appropriate and effective 
disaster mitigation, response and recovery.  However, freedom of initiative cannot be used as an excuse for failure to take necessary 
coordinated action to successfully accomplish objectives. 

Plan components are considered dynamic in nature and accordingly there will be a CURRENT VERSION but no final version.  The Debris Project 
Manager designates and authenticates the CURRENT VERSION and directs the destruction of all superseded copies.  The Debris Project Manager 
will retain the MASTER COPY.   

This plan will grow through an evolutionary process that will focus on changing requirements, evolving capabilities and maturing support 
relationships.   

Region 22 Emergency Management 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 150 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page ii  
 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 151 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page iii  
 

Table of Contents 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Debris Management Action Plan Appendices ............................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Appendix A – Increased Readiness Stage Checklist ................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Appendix B – Post Event Response Stage Checklist................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Appendix C – Recovery Stage Checklist ................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Appendix D – Debris Management Team ................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Appendix E – Key Personnel ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Appendix F – Contractors ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Appendix G – Debris Sites ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 18 

Appendix H – Contracts and Mutual Aid Agreements ............................................................................................................................................. 20 

Appendix I – Reconstitution Checklist ..................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 152 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page iv  
 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 153 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page v  
 

Revision History 

Date Version Description Author 

March 2012 1.0 Initial Release FDI Consulting, Inc. 

April 2012 1.1 Updates per EM Review FDI Consulting, Inc. 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 154 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 1  
 

 

Introduction 

This document is a dynamic component of Region 22 EM’s Disaster Debris Management Program (Scotts Bluff and Banner Counties in Nebraska).  
It is designed to provide a framework for local government and other entities to clear, remove, reduce, recycle, and dispose of debris generated 
during a public emergency within the jurisdiction.  This Plan unifies the efforts of local government with the State and Federal organizations for a 
comprehensive and effective approach to: 

• Provide organizational structure, guidance, and standardized guidelines for the clearance, removal, staging, reduction, recycling, 
processing, and disposal of debris caused by a major debris-generating event; 

• Establish the most efficient and cost effective methods to resolve disaster debris removal staging, reduction, recycling, processing, and 
disposal issues; 

• Mitigate potential health hazards from hazardous debris materials. 

This plan should be considered a preparedness document, intended to be read, understood and kept current before a disaster occurs.  It is 
critical that a high level of preparedness be achieved and maintained by personnel designated as Debris Management Team members. 

Debris Management Program Coordinator 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 155 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 2  
 

 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 156 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 3  
 

 

Debris Management Action Plan Appendices 

Once a disaster event is forecasted which has the potential of requiring debris cleanup and is imminent (projected to occur within the next five 
days to a week), the Debris Project Manager notifies the Debris Management Team to begin actions outlined in Appendix A – Increased 
Readiness Stage Checklist. 

The following Action Plan contains checklists, contact lists, and other pertinent reference information to be utilized in preparation for, during 
and after an event has occurred.  This information includes: 

Appendix A. Increased Readiness Stage Checklist – Activities to considerations when a potential debris generating event is imminent 

Appendix B. Post Event Response Stage Checklist – Activities to consider during first hours to first week after event  

Appendix C. Recovery Stage Checklist – Activities to consider during weeks 2 and 3 after event 

Appendix D. Debris Management Team - Team Members and Responsibilities 

Appendix E. Key Personnel – Contacts in other government agencies (federal, state and local)  

Appendix F. Contractors – Entities or persons that can be called upon to assist with the response and recovery activities 

Appendix G. Debris Staging and Reduction Sites – Identify sites and contact numbers for  

Appendix H. Contracts and Mutual Aid Agreements – Lists existing contracts and Mutual Aid Agreements in place 

Appendix I. Reconstitution Checklist – Activities for longer term recovery and event closure 

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 157 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 4  
 

 

Appendix A – Increased Readiness Stage Checklist 

Begin pre-event preparations when a disaster event is forecasted and appears to be imminent for this section of the country.  Key emergency 
personnel and representatives of involved outside agencies will be put on alert and will monitor the progress of the storm event to gauge where 
and when it might strike the area and with what severity.   

The following checklist is to be considered upon initiation of the Increased Readiness Stage.  The responsibilities for these actions are a 
combination of the Debris Management Team and the Impact Assessment Team. 

Increased Readiness Stage (Event Imminent) 

Done Order Action 

 1 
Event Forecast Detected – whenever a member of the Debris Management Team (DMT) is made aware that an event is 
forecasted and imminent (occurrence within the next 5 to 7 days), it is their responsibility to notify DMT leadership to 
insure they are aware of the situation.   

 2 
DMT leadership will convene a meeting of the DMT to assess the situation and determine if additional Increased Readiness 
activities are warranted.  If so, continue with checklist, otherwise situation is placed ‘on hold’ status until additional 
information becomes available.   

 3 Review and evaluate readiness of debris staging and collection sites.   

 4 
Insure members of the DMT download print or make available necessary contracts, contact lists and other relevant 
documentation required for Post Event Response and Recovery Stage activities.   

 5 
Download, print or make available current road lists, centerline diagrams.  Coordinate with the State Highway Department 
to acquire the most recent federal and state road list and maps of the jurisdiction prior to the storm event, if necessary.  
Having this information on-hand ensures that debris collection operates properly and commences in a timely manner.   

 6 

Alert key personnel (Reference Key Personnel List), including pre-positioned contractors (Reference Key Contractors List) to 
brief them of their roles and responsibilities.  Contacts should be made both verbally and with email communication 
briefing them on information needed to begin the response and recovery process and to schedule a briefing meeting no 
later than 24 hours prior to the estimated arrival of the disaster event or storm.   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 158 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 5  
 

 

Increased Readiness Stage (Event Imminent) 

Done Order Action 

 7 

Conduct a meeting with primary points of contacts of alerted personnel and pre-positioned contractors to discuss 
emergency road clearing activities and Post Event Response and Recovery Stage plan activities.  Discussions should address 
the following key issues:  

 Availability and amount of assets that will be dedicated to debris removal operations;  
 Estimating time of mobilization;  
 Identification of primary points of contact;  
 Exchange mobile contact information; and  
 Determine if Contractor presence is needed at the EOC during the event.  
 Identify staging areas for Truck Certification for vehicles used in hauling debris. 

 8 
Public Information Officer (“PIO”) issues pre-event media press release preparing residents for the potential debris removal 
operation. (Reference Debris Management Master Plan - SAMPLE Press Releases)  

 9 Issue media press release about waste transfer station closure times/dates, as required. 

 10 Continue to monitor the situation and provide updates to the DMT, other key personnel and contractors, as required. 

   

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 159 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 6  
 

 

 

Appendix B – Post Event Response Stage Checklist 

This stage begins when the all clear is given and it is safe to begin work.  It covers the period of time that roadways are cleared of scattered 
debris, leaning trees, and other roadways obstructions to emergency response vehicles.  This operation is reimbursable by FEMA on a time and 
materials basis, so it is critical that all the types and time durations of equipment used are documented with detail and accuracy. (Please note 
that the reimbursement criteria and duration for time and materials work is subject to change following a disaster).  During this phase, the 
local Emergency Management and/or Debris Project Manager will initiate emergency roadway debris clearing operations and utilize internal 
equipment.  If necessary, Emergency Management may request additional resources for emergency road clearance operations from contractors.  
Road clearance priorities should be pre-established to allow access to critical public facilities such as: fire stations, police stations, hospitals, 
emergency supply centers and other critical facilities.  Concurrent to emergency road clearing operations, jurisdiction debris contractors should 
perform necessary preparation work to open debris-staging sites.  Note that all identified Debris Staging Sites may not be necessary, and will 
depend on the strength and location of impact of the storm event.   

Post Event Response Stage (after All Clear – First Week) 

Done Order Action 

 1 

Initiate Damage Assessments - Damage assessments are necessary to determine the extent and the location of the 
debris. Windshield surveys of the populated areas are taken and used to communicate critical damage areas to the 
Debris Management Team to assist with prioritizing road clearance efforts.   If possible, additional surveys should be 
conducted by an aerial view of damaged areas within the jurisdiction.   

 2 
Begin Emergency Roadway Debris Clearance - State Highway Department commences with road clearance or “cut and 
toss” activities.  These operations prioritize major arteries leading to storm shelters, hospitals, supply points and other 
critical locations.  State Highway Department maintains road clearance responsibility for all State and Federal Roads.   

 3 

Activate Debris Removal Contractors and Establish Contractor Boundaries - Using the damage assessments; activate 
debris removal contractors, as required.  Coordinate with jurisdiction Contract Administrator prior to making this 
determination.  Debris hauling and monitoring contractors are generally required if the storm event results in wide 
spread debris fields (i.e. ice or severe winter storm, tornado, etc.).  When activated; each contractor should be 
reminded to review an updated road list and the debris collection zone map.  The full list of debris collection zones has 
been provided in Appendix H.  Contractors should begin logistical coordination and equipment ramp-up immediately 
upon receiving a Notice-to-Proceed.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 160 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 7  
 

 

Post Event Response Stage (after All Clear – First Week) 

Done Order Action 

 4 

Prepare Debris Staging Sites based on concentration of debris - Debris Management Team representative(s), pre-
positioned contractors, and other key personnel (as required) will meet to discuss the opening and operation of pre-
identified debris staging locations.  Qualification criteria should be reviewed at this time:  

 Current availability;  
 Duration of availability;  
 Ingress/Egress;  
 Concentration of debris relative to each site; and  
 Geographic location within the jurisdiction.  

Upon a review of availability and suitability, the debris contractors begin site preparation.  The DMT representative(s) 
and the debris clearance-monitoring firm will oversee the contractor’s activities to ensure that they are in compliance 
with their contractual obligations, environmental standards, and acting in the best interest of the jurisdiction and its 
residents.  The state Department of Environmental Protection will be contacted to provide final approval under an 
emergency declaration for the Debris Staging Site locations.   

 5 

Conduct Meetings/Briefings with Key Personnel  - Coordination meetings and briefings with key personnel are 
conducted to update the status of the road clearance efforts, debris staging site openings, contractor asset ramp-up 
and pertinent public information for press releases.  Region 22 EM Emergency Management will recommend daily 
meetings occur between 8:00 am and 4:00 pm (at a location determined by the REPC) to include key Region 22 EM 
REPC personnel, jurisdiction contractors, and the Region 22 EM Solid Waste Management District.  The morning 
briefing will focus on daily objectives and will include a discussion of operational progress and best debris 
management practices.  During each day, DMT representative(s) will review real time statistics and GIS layers that 
reflect operations through the end of the previous day.   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 161 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 8  
 

 

Post Event Response Stage (after All Clear – First Week) 

Done Order Action 

 6 

Review Collection Zone Maps - The DMT representative(s), the debris-monitoring firm, and debris-hauling contractors 
will meet to review the debris assessment.  The topics included in this meeting may include, but not be limited to:  

 Amount of debris generated – in terms of cubic yards;  
 Type of debris generated - vegetative, C&D and/or sand;  
 Number and estimated date of arrival for assets – trucks, loaders, monitoring personnel;  
 Estimated number of Debris Staging Site location necessary for recovery;  
 Preliminary scope of debris removal efforts;  
 Estimated cost of the debris removal efforts.  

Following this meeting, the DMT representative(s) and/or monitoring firm will begin to collect required 
documentation for the development of FEMA Project Worksheets and contact the FEMA Public Assistance Officer 
responsible for the jurisdiction.   

 7 Estimate Debris Volume and Collection Cost Assessment   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 162 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 9  
 

 

Post Event Response Stage (after All Clear – First Week) 

Done Order Action 

 8 

Schedule and conduct briefing with Public Assistance Officer (PAO) and FEMA Representative – Request contact 
information and meeting with FEMA PAO (This request is made through the State Emergency Management Agency).  
Determine and setup briefing with the designated PAO for the disaster and the local FEMA represented to discuss:  

 Summary of the jurisdiction’s debris removal operations to date;  
 Review debris removal and cost estimates for the jurisdiction;  
 Review any Disaster Specific Guidance (DSG) documents issued by FEMA;  
 Examine the jurisdiction’s debris removal plan;  
 Provide contact information for all jurisdiction contractors and primary points of contact;  
 Determine what additional information the PAO will need in order to generate Project Worksheets (PW) for 

the jurisdiction.  
In order for FEMA to generate a Category A: Emergency Phase Debris Removal and Debris Monitoring Project 
Worksheet, the following information will be required:  

1. A copy of the debris removal contract(s)  
2. A copy of the debris monitoring contract(s)  
3. Information on the procurement process on the debris removal and monitoring contracts.  
4. Address and GPS Coordinates for all Debris Staging Sites  
5. Debris estimates (using Appendix D models and damage assessment reports)  
6. Monitoring estimate (based on budgeted labor hours)  
7. A brief debris removal plan overview  

 9 

Begin Truck Certification - Truck Certification is one of the most important functions in initiating a debris removal 
operation.  Accuracy and documentation of all measurements is critical.  All container units hauling debris under a 
volumetric contract with the jurisdiction will have capacity and dimensions measured, sketched, photographed and 
documented on a truck certification form.  Each unit will be assigned a unique number for debris tracking and invoice 
reconciliation purposes.  Field documents will be developed by the debris contractor hired to operate the debris 
staging site with input from the Debris Management Team.   

 10 

Issue Media Press Release - A press release from the local governments and PIO (Public Information Officer) to various 
media sources should be issued within the first three days following the event/storm.  The subject matter of the press 
release will be to reassure and comfort the public that the jurisdiction is responding and has activated contractors to 
begin debris removal activities.   

   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 163 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 10  
 

 

Appendix C – Recovery Stage Checklist 

This stage is marked by debris removal contractor(s) collecting and reducing storm generated debris from the public right-of-way (Right of Way) 
and generally lasts through the first two weeks.  Concurrent to the commencement of Right of Way debris removal operations, the jurisdiction 
must evaluate the need for contract debris removal on private property, parks and waterways.  Specialized debris removal operations typically 
do not begin until roughly 60 days (Reference Reconstitution Stage Checklist) following the disaster event.  These are typically governed by DSG 
(Disaster Specific Guidance) and require some level of FEMA pre-validation.  However, if the jurisdiction determines that there is an immediate 
and imminent threat to public health and safety, expediting these programs should be considered.   

 

Recovery Stage Checklist (Weeks 2 and 3) 

Done Order Action 

 1 Open Debris Staging Sites - begin with those closest to the most heavily impacted areas.   

 2 
Prioritize Roads/Areas - Areas in the jurisdiction that sustain more extensive damage may need to be subdivided 
into smaller work zones and recorded on the jurisdiction’s GIS shape files.   

 3 Issue Second Press Release – PIO should issue press release regarding the segregation of vegetative, C&D, HHW   

 4 Begin Right of Way Debris Removal – Vegetative waste  

 5 Begin Right of Way Debris Removal – C&D Waste, HHW waste   

 6 

Perform Parks Damage Assessment – Debris Project Manager, in consultation with State Emergency 
Management, must determine responsibility for the removal of safety hazards in local Parks and Recreation 
Areas.  If local jurisdictions are responsible, the DMT must identify, in coordination with the local government 
parks and recreation departments, the vegetative hazards that require removal in Parks.  Eligibility criteria to be 
considered include:  

 Leaning trees 24” in diameter or greater  

 Hanging limbs 2” in diameter or greater  

 Uprooted stumps 24” in diameter or greater  
Eligibility criteria for cutwork are extremely sensitive to the size and scale of the disaster.  When surveying 
damages, it is extremely important for the jurisdiction and its contractors to be fully cognizant of all Disaster 
Specific Guidance.  If the scope of work required is not consistent with current scopes under contract, it is 
recommended that the jurisdiction fully develop the park scope of work and bid it as a separate, competitive 
contract.   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 164 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 11  
 

 

Recovery Stage Checklist (Weeks 2 and 3) 

Done Order Action 

 7 

Coordinate with External Agencies – DMT should confirm that the State Highway Department is coordinating 
with the local municipalities to ensure that all jurisdiction road segments are progressing with debris removal 
operations and offer assistance, as required.   

 8 
Initiate discussions with FEMA Debris Team – The DMT should continue to brief debris removal plans and operations 
to the FEMA Debris Team.  This supports a coordinated effort, enhances the transparency of the operation for auditors 
and ensures maximum FEMA reimbursement.   

 9 

Obtain FEMA guidance for private property debris removal - FEMA will issue Disaster Specific Guidance for debris 
removal on private properties and within gated communities.  Eligibility will be determined on a case-by-case basis 
following an event.  In order for FEMA to make an eligibility determination, the following events must occur:  

 FEMA must determine that the damage poses a threat to the health and safety of the community at large 
and that the scale and cost associated with the debris removal operation exceed the jurisdiction’s financial 
ability to bear.  

 The jurisdiction demonstrates that it has the legal authority to enter private property and gated 
communities and accept the responsibility to abate all hazards, regardless of whether or not a Federal 
Disaster Declaration is made.  

 The jurisdiction attains a signed Right-of-Entry (ROE) form holding the Federal government harmless from 
any damages caused to private property.  An example of this form can be found in Appendix F.  The 
jurisdiction may execute ROE forms prior to a disaster under the condition that the ROE does not 
reference a particular event or disaster number.   

   

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 165 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 12  
 

 

Appendix D – Debris Management Team 

Debris Management Team 

The Debris Management Team (DMT) is made up of representatives of local solid waste districts, local (county and municipal) emergency 
management, local (county and municipal) parks and local (county and municipal) road departments.  Additionally, the team should have 
designated state emergency management contact(s) included.  This team is responsible for the providing direction, coordination and decision 
making associated with increased readiness, response, recovery and reconstitution activities. DMT Coordinator is listed first with remainder 
listed in succession order.   

Organization Team Member Primary No. Backup No. Emergency No. 

Region 22 Emergency Management Jerry Bretthauer, Director 308-436-6689 308-641-0016 308-436-6666 

Scottsbluff Police Department Kevin Spencer, Chief 308-630-6261 308-641-2317 308-436-6666 

Scottsbluff Environmental Services Anthony Harris, Supervisor 308-630-0985 None 308-436-6666 

Scottsbluff Transportation Brett Bewley, Supervisor 308-630-6297 308-436-7415 308-436-6666 

Scottsbluff Finance Renae Griffiths, Director 308-630-6212 308-631-5576 308-436-6666 

Scottsbluff City Manager's Office Rick Kuckkhan, City Manager 308-630-6213 308-631-6222 308-436-6666 

Gering Environmental Services Darrell Vance, Interim Director 308-436-7568 308-631-0053 308-436-5880 

Gering Finance John Mejia, Director and City Treasurer 308-436-5096 308-672-2662 308-436-5880 

Gering City Administration Lane Danielzuk, City Administrator 308-436-6810 308-631-8852 308-436-5880 

Gering Public Works Pat Heath, Director 308-436-6834 308-641-0958 308-436-5880 

     

     

     

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 166 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 13  
 

 

Normal Operations or Pre-Event Responsibilities 

1. Be knowledgeable and supportive of Disaster Debris Management Program;  
2. Be knowledgeable of procedures for internal and external communications; 
3. Review and approve results of periodic plan review;   
4. Be knowledgeable of procedure for activating and executing the plan; 
5. Provide oversight to insure the following activities are completed and maintained: 

a. Establish Pre-positioned Contracts  
b. Debris Staging Site  
c. Operator Debris 
d. Hauler(s) Debris Monitor   
e. Emergency Roadway Clearing (Optional)   
f. Review and Update Federal and State Road List   
g. Review and Update Emergency Contact List   
h. Review and Update the Debris Staging Site locations   
i. Review and Update Relevant Ordinances/Bylaws   
j. Review and Update Inter-Municipal Agreements and MOUs   
k. Monitor and Evaluate Debris Staging Capacity at Landfills   
l. Review and Update the Debris Management Plan   
m. Draft Pre-disaster Media Press Releases 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 167 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 14  
 

 

Appendix E – Key Personnel 

The following table identifies contacts within the federal, state or local governments that require status updates and/or may be called upon to 
assist with debris management activities. 

Organization Represented Name(s) Contact Information Role 

Banner County Highway 
Department/Public Works 

Thomas Neal, Director 
308-436-4460; 
addresstneal5237@yahoo.com 

Loaders, dump trucks, 
transportation of debris 

FEMA Region VII Dan Best 816-283-7027 Infrastructure Branch 

FEMA Region VII Steven Castaner 816-283-7025 Sustainable recovery 

Gering Parks, Recreation and 
Leisure Services 

Ron Ernst, Director 308-631-4839 Loaders and dump trucks 

Gering Police Department 
Judi Doty, Animal 
Warden/Zoning Officer 

308-436-5089; jdoty@gering.org Code enforcement 

Gering Street Department 
Casey Dahlgrin; Transportation 
Supervisor 

308-436-6835; 
cdahlgrin@gering.org 

Loaders, dump truck, 
transportation of debris 

NDOR Matt Radkey 308-874-4158 
Nebraska Dept. of Roads, can 
remove debris 

Nebraska Department of 
Environmental Quality, 
Scottsbluff Field Office 

John Flint, Geologist/Ground 
Water 

308-632-0544; 
john.flint@nebraska.gov 

Environmental quality 

Nebraska Department of Roads, 
District 5 

Craig Lind 
308-436-6587; 
craig.lind@nebraska.gov 

Loaders, dump trucks, 
transportation of debris 

Nebraska Dept. of Corrections Director 402-471-6265 Manpower 

Nebraska Dept. of Roads Operations Supervisor 402-471-4567 Resource for heavy equipment 

Nebraska Emergency 
Management 

Donny Christensen 402-471-7416 Public Assistance Unit Supervisor 

Nebraska Emergency 
Management 

Duty officer 402-471-7421 Contact for Federal assistance 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 168 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 15  
 

 

Organization Represented Name(s) Contact Information Role 

Nebraska Emergency 
Management Agency 

Al Berndt, Assistant Director 
402-471-7410; 
al.berndt@nebraska.gov 

State asset availability and 
authorization 

Nebraska National Guard A.G.’s office 402-309-7210 Equipment & personnel 

Nebraska State Patrol Headquarters Troop 402-471-4545 Site security 

Region 21 EM Ronald Leal 308-249-1310 
Emergency Management 
Director 

Region 23 EM Nan Gould  Emergency Management Deputy 

Scotts Bluff County 
Roads/Bridges/Highway 
Department 

Bob Bennett, Director 
308-436-6700; 
rbennett@scottsbluff.org 

Loaders, dump trucks, 
transportation of debris 

Scottsbluff Developmental 
Services 

Gary Batt, Code Administrator II 
308-630-6246; 
gbatt@scottsbluff.org 

Code enforcement 

Scottsbluff Parks and Recreation Rick Deeds, Park Supervisor 
308-632-0058; 
RDeeds@scottsbluff.org 

Loaders and dump trucks 

Scottsbluff Transportation 
Department 

Mike Loutzenhiser, Supervisor 308-630-6297; no email address 
Loaders, dump trucks, 
transportation of debris 

    

    

    

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 169 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 16  
 

 

 

Appendix F – Contractors  

The following table identifies contractors that may be called upon to assist with debris management activities.  Contracted services typically 
include: 

 Collection, including clearance during response phase 

 Reduction or recycling 

 Hazardous waste handling, processing, and disposal 

 Hauling to final disposition 

 Debris Management Site activities 

 Demolition 

 Monitoring 

 Environmental studies 

 Project management 
 

Contractor Name Contact Information Product or Service Provided Contracted 

AquaTerra Environmental Solutions - 
615 S. Beltline Hwy. (W), Scottsbluff 

Jennifer Hoevet; 308-633-2761; 
jhoevet@aquagterra-env.com 

Environmental Studies - Engineering 
Consultant & Environmental Consultant 

No 

Baker and Associates - 120 E. 16th St., 
Scottsbluff 

Jack Baker; 308-632-3123; jack@baker-
eng.com 

Environmental Studies - Engineering 
Consultant 

No 

M. C. Schaff and Associates - 818 S. 
Beltline Hwy. (E), Scottsbluff 

Dave Schaff; 308-635-1926; 
dschaff@mcshaff.com 

Environmental Studies - Engineering 
Consultant 

No 

Sidney Waste/Landfill - 2232 Rd. 115, 
Sidney 

Rob Campbell; 308-249-6183; 
solidwaste@cityofsidney.org 

Hauling to final disposition - Disposal of 
debris 

No 

Solid Waste Agency of Northwest 
Nebraska - 1010 Niobrara, Chadron 

Operator: Jack Nemeth; 308-432-4245; 
swan60@hotmail.com 

Hauling to final disposition - Transfer 
station 

No 

Waste Connections - Gering - 710 
County Club Road, Gering 

Shawn Green; 308-635-6673 or 308-532-
1367; shawngh@wcnx.org 

Hauling to final disposition - Disposal of 
debris 

No 

Waste Connections - Ogallala - 100 E. 
11th Street, Ogallala 

Will McKnight; 308-289-0942 or 308-287-
2107; willm@wcnx.org 

Hauling to final disposition - Disposal of 
debris 

No 

    

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 170 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 17  
 

 

Contractor Name Contact Information Product or Service Provided Contracted 

NOTE: Reference LEOP Appendix L for additional information 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 171 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 18  
 

 

Appendix G – Debris Sites 

This section allows for identification of Debris Management Sites (DMS).  DMS are established when cannot be directly from the collection point to 
the final disposition location.  A DMS is a location to temporarily store, reduce, segregate, and/or process debris before it is hauled to its final 
disposition.  It is frequently used to increase the operational flexibility when landfill space is limited or when the landfill is not in close proximity to 
the debris removal area. (Reference FEMA 325 Debris Management Guide - Chapter 8 - Debris Management Site) 

Site Types: 

 Staging-Transfer – Also referred to as Collection Sites used for temporary storage of debris to be transferred to another type site. 

 Reduction-Recycling – Sites where debris is either incinerated, chipping and grinding and/or recycled to reduce debris volume. 

 Final Disposal – Typically landfills where debris is permanently disposed. 

Debris Types: 

 General Solid Waste – general household trash and personal belongings; 

 Construction and Demolition (C&D) - building materials (which may include asbestos-containing materials), drywall, lumber, carpet, 
furniture, mattresses, plumbing. 

 Green waste — vegetative, trees, branches, shrubs, and logs. 

 Household hazardous waste (HHW) — oil, pesticides, paints, cleaning agents. 

 White goods — refrigerators, freezers, washers, dryers, stoves, water heaters, dishwashers, air conditioners. 

 Electronic waste (E-Waste) — computers, televisions, printers, stereos, DVD players, telephones. 

 Vehicle waste – cars, trucks, aviation, recreational and other motorized machines which may use or contain tires, lubricating fluids, 
mercury switches, lead-acid batteries, gasoline, oil or other petroleum products. 

 Putrescible waste – typically animal carcasses or other solid waste that contains organic matter capable of being decomposed by 
microorganisms. 

Site Name and Location Site Type Debris Type Capacity Notes 

Chadron Solid Waste Agency of 
Northwest Nebraska at 1010 E. 
Niobrara, Chadron 

Final Disposal Multiple Types (see Notes) 16,000,000 cu. yds.  

City of Scottsbluff Old Landfill - 1/4 
mile east of CR M south of CR23, east 
of Scottsbluff 

Staging-Transfer Multiple Types (see Notes) 1,000,000 cu. yds.  

Gering Landfill at 200531 West U, 
Gering 

Staging-Transfer Multiple Types (see Notes) 1,000,000 cu. yds.  

Gering Tree Dump at 220530 East U, 
Gering 

Staging-Transfer Multiple Types (see Notes) 500,000 cu. yds.  

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 172 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 19  
 

 

Site Name and Location Site Type Debris Type Capacity Notes 

Sidney Waste/Landfill at 2232 Rd. 
115, Sidney 

Final Disposal Multiple Types (see Notes) 10,000,000 cu. yds.  

Soccer Field at 5th Avenue and E. 
42nd Street, Scottsbluff 

Staging-Transfer Multiple Types (see Notes) 1,000,000 cu. yds.  

Waste Connection - Ogallala at 100 E. 
11th St., Ogallala 

Final Disposal Multiple Types (see Notes) 4,000,000 cu. yds.  

     

     

     

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 173 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 20  
 

 

 

Appendix H – Contracts and Mutual Aid Agreements 

Table provides a summary of existing Mutual Aid Agreements that may assist with the debris management process.  These agreements typically 

include utilization of personnel, equipment, temporary landfill sites, emergency services, and law enforcement.   

As defined by FEMA, a Mutual Aid Agreement is a written understanding between communities and States obligating assistance during a disaster. 
Reference FEMA RP9523.6, Mutual Aid Agreements for Public Assistance and Fire Management Assistance. 

Jurisdiction Agreement  Summary 

None. No Memorandums of Understanding currently exist. 

  

  

  

  

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 174 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 21  
 

 

 

Appendix I – Reconstitution Checklist 

One of the goals of the Disaster Debris Management Program is to provide for preparation for, response to and near term recovery from a debris 
generating event.  However, during the first week or two after the event, decisions must be considered for returning the jurisdiction back to 
more normal or normal operations.  After response and recovery actions are completed, ongoing management of clean up, removal and 
communications must continue.   

The following checklists are for used to guide longer term recovery efforts typically two weeks and beyond. 

Reconstitution Checklist (Week 2 to 1 Month) 

Done Order Action 

 1 

Maintain and evaluate Right of Way Cleanup – Vegetative and C & D - Information on debris collection and progress 
completion will be mapped and recorded on GIS shape files and provided to the REPC on a daily basis. A completion map 
will be posted on the appropriate website and updated daily. To ensure proper record keeping and reimbursement from all 
appropriate agencies, it is important for the jurisdiction to announce the completion of first pass.   

 2 

Open Residential Drop-off stations - These sites accommodate anxious residents eager to remove debris from their 
property. Further, the sites can be used as a drop-off area for HHW to supplement additional jurisdiction facilities, if 
necessary. In order to avoid illegal dumping, site security and published hours of operation and closure dates are 
recommended.   

 3 

Conduct daily meetings with FEMA Debris Team to ensure strong coordination and address any operational problems. -  If 
approved, begin debris removal from private property and gated communities.  Communicate project close-out to 
residents via press release. This should focus on clarifying ineligible debris confusion and communicating debris set-out 
deadline in order to minimize illegal dumping. Protocol for leaners/hangers and gated community debris removal 
programs, if applicable, should be communicated at this time. 

 4 Consider opening additional Debris Staging Sites as necessary  

   

   

   

   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 175 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 22  
 

 

 

Reconstitution Checklist (1 Month to 3 Months) 

Done Order Action 

 1 

Maintain and evaluate Right of Way Cleanup – Vegetative and C&D - Information on debris collection and progress 
completion will be mapped and recorded on GIS shape files by the GIS Dept. and provided to the DMT on a daily 
basis.  A completion map will be posted on the jurisdiction’s website and updated daily.  During this period, the 
jurisdiction must announce the completion of second pass and establish a deadline for residents to set out debris on 
the Right of Way, as well as a deadline for jurisdiction contractors to complete the third pass.   

 2 

Begin Right of Way Leaners/Hangers Program - DMT may determine that a significant amount of threats to public 
health and safety remain in the form of hanging limbs and leaning trees on the Right of Way.  These threats must be 
identified and verified against Disaster Specific Guidance criteria for eligibility prior to the commencement of work to 
ensure maximum reimbursement.   

 3 Initiate Haul-out of reduced debris from Debris Staging Sites to final disposal sites, as necessary.   

 4 Continue to provide weekly status briefings with the FEMA Debris Team. 

   

   

   

   

   

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 176 / 178



Disaster Debris Management Program - Action Plan 
Nebraska Planning Exercise and Training Region 22 

Confidential and Proprietary   Page 23  
 

 

 

Reconstitution Checklist (Beyond 3 Months) 

Done Order Action 

 1 
Complete all Debris Recovery Activities - Jurisdiction contractors will punch-list and remove all remaining eligible debris 
piles.  

 2 

Identify ineligible debris on Right of Way  - Once identified the jurisdiction can proceed in one of several ways:  

 Work with jurisdiction Code Enforcement to hold individual homeowners responsible for the disposal of 
ineligible debris.  

 Handle the removal of ineligible debris internally with local government’s resources.  
 Task the jurisdiction contractor with the removal of ineligible debris and incur the associated cost.  It is 

recommended that this debris be direct hauled to the local Transfer Station to reduce associated handling 
costs.   

 3 
Finalize the disposal of reduced debris - Ensure that jurisdiction Contractors attain proper disposal tipping fee 
information.   

 4 
Closeout and Remediate Debris Staging Sites - This will require a walk through and approval by a representative of the 
state environmental department.   

 5 Conduct project closeout meetings with FEMA Debris Team and External Agencies  

   

 

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 177 / 178



City of Scottsbluff, Nebraska
Monday, November 18, 2013

Regular Meeting

Item Exec1

(Council reserves the right to enter into closed session if deemed 
necessary if the item is on the agenda.)

Staff Contact: Rick Kuckkahn, City Manager

Scottsbluff Regular Meeting - 11/18/2013 Page 178 / 178


